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San Miguel Brewery
Hong Kong Limited

and its subsidiaries
registered a consolidated
profit of HK$13.9 million
in 2020.
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THE YEAR’'S HIGHLIGHTS NEEFE

(BrE1ThE - BERBA RE T AR
SMILAEEETIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number
of shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

2020 2019
—E-FF —ZT-NEF
Revenue ($'000) WA (F7) 555,658 580,050
Profit for the year ($'000) FEAF (Fi) 13,851 8,300
Earnings per share — Basic (cents) GRR2BF — &7 (1) 5 3
Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000) PEEEES (For) 11,068 13,825
Taxes paid per share (cents) FRFTE () 3 a
Non-current tangible assets ($'000) FERBBFREE (TIT) 465,291 474,377
Net worth ($'000) HE (F7T) 543,011 515,914
Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000) e TAEREMERN (FT) 121,179 122,952
Number of shares issued BITIREX 373,570,560 373,570,560
Number of shareholders PR EE 1,950 1,946
Number of personnel ETAH 517 491
[



To our shareholders,

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) registered a consolidated profit of HK$13.9 million in 2020
(2019: HK$8.3 million). Net profit attributable to equity shareholders for 2020
reached HK$17.2 million (2019: HK$11.6 million).

The Group's consolidated revenue was HK$555.7 million, 4.2% lower than the
same period in 2019. Gross profit reached HK$243.4 million, 6.0% lower than
the HK$258.8 million in 2019, with a gross profit margin of 43.8%.

As of 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
amounted to HK$156.1 million (HK$129.4 million as of 31 December 2019).

Loans as of 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$92.9 million, 9.1 % lower
than the HK$102.2 million debt reported the prior year. Total net assets stood
at HK$543.0 million (HK$515.9 million as of 31 December 2019), with a loan-
to-equity ratio of 0.17 (31 December 2019: 0.20).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE &

DIVIDENDS

No final dividends will be declared for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW
HONG KONG OPERATIONS

The economic recession in Hong Kong eased in the second half of 2020,
as the territory managed to contain the third wave of COVID-19 infections,
before the onset of the fourth wave toward the end of the year. The
moderately improved economic performance in the second half was also
due to the low-base effect, since the economic situation in the comparable
half of 2019 was marked by the social unrest that reigned in spending and
investment.

To provide the private sector financial support, the Hong Kong Government
launched the “"Employment Support Scheme” (ESS). The Company availed of
this program and received the support in two tranches for wages paid from
June to August, and from September to November 2020. Our Hong Kong
operations posted strong profit recovery in 2020, driven by an improvement
in total volumes and rationalization in spending, further supported by the
government's ESS.

Our Hong Kong operations were able to achieve roughly the same level of
local sales volume in 2020 despite a 7% contraction of the total Hong Kong
beer industry compared to the same period in 2019. Including export sales
volumes, the Company achieved a 2% increase in total sales volume over the
previous year.

The various COVID-19-related restrictions on social distancing and cross-
border activities impacted the entire market dynamics of the beer industry.
Sales in on-premise outlets declined and beer consumption shifted to off-
premise, which accounted for 84% of retail sales in 2020. The Company was
able to adapt quickly to changing consumer habits by targeting advertising
and promotion towards more appropriate media and channels, to ensure that
our brands fit into consumers’ new lifestyles.

To take advantage of the shift to home consumption, San Miguel brands San
Miguel Pale Pilsen, San Mig Light and San Miguel Cerveza Negra, implemented
a co-branded retail chain-wide promotion, Xjzx, which ran from May to
June. This was followed by a co-branded market-wide lucky draw promotion
implemented from August to September. Both major initiatives were
supported by tactical advertising, including on-site and online campaigns to
ensure high awareness, participation, and consumption. Apart from these,
the market-wide promotion also utilized television ads to encourage greater
participation. A series of premium redemption promotion was also organized
throughout the year to push volumes in convenience stores.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE 3R &

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
HONG KONG OPERATIONS (Continued)

The premium segment’s share of the Hong Kong market increased in 2020,
pushing the growth of our broad portfolio of premium, specialty, and craft
beers. Red Horse Beer, in particular, outperformed its sales in 2019 by more
than 200%. Kirin beer brands, which the Company distributes exclusively
within Hong Kong and Macau, registered a 17% volume improvement over
the previous year. Riding on the uptrend of the premium segment, the
Company launched San Miguel Cerveza Blanca, our new wheat beer offering,
in December 2020. With its perfect harmony of spicy, smoky, and fruity flavors
throughout a smooth and refreshing taste, the Company expects the brand to
be well-received by Hong Kong consumers.

In the lower-priced segment, our Blue Ice Beer brand was able to increase its
market share following consistent programs such as celebrity endorsement,
retail chain-wide promotions, and exclusive premium redemptions in
convenience store.

SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

Despite seeing its first economic contraction in nearly three decades during
the first quarter of 2020, China reported GDP growth for the year.

The drop in consumer spending was a stark reminder of the extensive impact
of the pandemic both in terms of public health and the economic impact
after the government imposed strict measures to control the spread of
infections. The decline in sales volume within South China was a result of the
national lockdown, with government mandating the temporary shutdown of
all outlets, factories — including our brewery in Foshan — and the closure of
shipping ports in South China in the early part of the year. Weak commercial
activities also persisted even after the lockdown. While export volume was
initially affected by the temporary closure of the brewery and shipping ports,
it was able to recover and deliver positive growth for the year.

As announced on 28 October 2020, the business term of Guangzhou San
Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB") expired on 29 November 2020
in accordance with GSMB'’s Articles of Association and the Joint Venture
Contract between San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited (“SMG") and Guangzhou
Brewery (“GB"). GSMB ceased operations on 30 November 2020.

The principal activity of GSMB was the distribution of bottled, canned, and
draught beers in the South China market, while San Miguel (Guangdong)
Brewery Company Limited (“SMGB") manufactures and provides quality beer
products and services to both GSMB and San Miguel Brewing International’s
export business. Following the cessation of GSMB operations, SMGB took
over the selling and distribution of the said beer products in the South China
market on 30 November 2020.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS (Continued)

Overall, our consolidated South China operations improved and registered
sales volume growth in 2020. However, overall profit performance declined
by 94% due to the one-time cost for the employee separation pay in relation
to the cessation of GSMB. Without the cost of employee separation pay, the
overall profit of the South China Operations would have improved by 90%.

Brand-building focused on tactical initiatives to drive consumption. San
Miguel Pale Pilsen launched an under-the-crown market-wide campaign
through an on-line lucky draw promotion from August to November 2020,
with merchandising blitz support. Meanwhile, San Mig Light rolled out a
merchandising campaign in June 2020 in almost 900 outlets to improve
visibility and promote brand awareness. In addition, the Company introduced
Dragon Legend in 330ml-bottle in night outlets and in strategic restaurants.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Social responsibility is an important aspect of how we do business. Apart
from meticulously complying with legal or regulatory requirements, we
genuinely work toward making a positive impact on the welfare of our
employees, their families, our business partners, our local communities, and
the environment.

Since 2015, we have published an Environment, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report to provide the public an appreciation of how we approach
and address different ESG issues. The Company’s 2020 ESG Report will
be available on our website within three months of the publication of the
Company’s annual report.

We actively promote responsible drinking within the organization and also
to the public. We are also committed to protecting the environment and
ensuring that environmental standards and initiatives set by the government
are met or exceeded.

To bring focus and emphasis on the Company’s approach and strategy on

the management of ESG issues, the Board established the Sustainability
Committee on 2 November 2020.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company has always recognized the key role our employees play in our
success. As such, we continue to invest in our people by ensuring they are
equipped with the knowledge, skills, and experiences to match our needs,
keep them challenged, and allow them to reach their fullest potential. Even
in the time of COVID-19, we've invested in in-house training and publicly
available webinars to support their personal growth and foster harmony in
the organization.

We also have in place a set of safety and health measures to protect
our employees from both the day-to-day working environment and from
extraordinary circumstances such as the COVID-19 pandemic.

We continue to offer competitive remuneration packages commensurate
with industry standards and to provide attractive fringe benefits, including
medical and insurance coverage and numerous paid leaves, on top of legal
requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continues to apply the principles of the Corporate Governance
("CG") Code and CG Report contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the year, save for the deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term
(Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code) and are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and to re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

o The board only met three times during the year under review (Code
Provision A.1.1 of the CG Code) due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
the regulations implemented by the HKSAR government and the
Philippines government, which prohibited international travel.

o The chairman and the board committees, who are based in Manila,
did not attend the Annual General Meeting in 2020 due to the
COVID-19 pandemic and the regulations implemented by the HKSAR
government and the Philippines government, which prohibited
international travel.

DIRECTORS

Mr. William C. M. Cheng has resigned as an alternate director to an
independent non-executive director, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li, due to his
retirement from The Bank of East Asia, Limited, and was replaced by Ms.
Sum Li on 1 September 2020. Save for this, there has been no change in the
membership of the Board of Directors since we published our interim report
on 25 August 2020.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES

For 2021, the Company has outlined the following objectives:

In Hong Kong, we will further improve profitability and work to
increase our market share by maximizing the use of our resources,
nurturing a winning culture within the organization, and focus more
on the San Miguel brand. We will be quick to adopt to emerging
consumption dynamics in our markets and will work closely with
wholesalers and direct customers to ensure product availability is in
line with market needs.

In South China, we intend to take advantage of newly streamlined
operations and further improve profitability by continuing to develop
both our dealer and wholesaler networks in all of our markets. We
will strengthen the brand equity of both the San Miguel and Dragon
brands while enhancing the productivity of our sales force. We will
also maintain our export business and aim to improve margins and
rationalize costs.

To achieve these objectives, we will be responsive to the following risks:

While the global pandemic persists as of this writing, the arrival of COVID-19
vaccines offers hope for economic recovery. However, access as well as the
timing of distribution in mainland China, Hong Kong, and Macau is yet to be
determined. The occurrence of new and more infectious and/or fatal strains
of COVID-19 is also something to watch out for. Improvements in domestic
economic activities and our performance as a company depends critically
on how fast and how efficient the vaccine roll-out is and whether there are
future outbreaks.

Political unrest in Hong Kong seems to have subsided as a result of
the COVID-19 pandemic and the new security law. We will continue to
monitor how the unrest will further manifest.

The Hong Kong government will be imposing a recycling levy on glass
beverage containers. When this measure is put in place, prices for our
products in glass bottles may be affected, which will in turn impact
consumption.

Moving forward, we reiterate our commitment to maximizing shareholder
value and strengthen our brands. We have a number of dynamic strategies
in place to not only help us cope with the challenges ahead, but also enable
us to manage costs effectively, so we can have a strong foundation for better
profitability.

12

75 1) B bk
ARAR-B-—FHEZEE

. KRR RMISBRESHERER  #H
HBOEXL ERTHEEENERR
g DUE— R ERBFAIBNMSIER
F o AL SRR ERETIZHH EH
BEA - YR ELERMEHEELHNA
1F - UEERERBEEEMSHER—K -

. FER - ZMISERHMOBHARRE
mEEEETS LEED ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂ%ﬁt%ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ
w o femE—SE RS - RIS
SRAENEEMEELR M MR EE - RRRES
HEBBMEEN - HATSRFHOE
B RN IRS BRI RAB(CRAS H o

REIEEEE  BOSREGEY N ERE
RS E - 2EBMARE - TiB2019T
MRSREENEREACEERERFE B2
BHEERBE AL - BB TR D 8 R iEERR
B ARHEE o Eﬁilﬂiﬂﬁ-r %ﬁH’JHEZO’I‘?LW{rar
FEERE B TRBHEE - B
5@%@5’\]3&%&%1?3@57E’\Jﬁﬁﬂgigﬁﬂﬁiﬁéﬁ
BEINRENSA  UAREERSESHERE
IR o

. 0 2019 AR R B 8 HY 3R M3 B 225 1)
it - BENBOABEUTRREM -
PR EEE BB RE— 7

. BRBRTHEEBAN T BBREEE -
EAAGIEME - RANKEDEE®
MERAIEEXITE  MTEHE -

RERK » ARRERLFINAGE  BONER
BEREESAL - Wit R mAE - HAIFTT
EI’JXIE@J““* TMER B EE R REV RS - TR

BEARUIERIRA - RARBFEREERENE
%



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT FE 3R &

FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES (Continued)

We will strive to ensure that our beer brands remain relevant to our
consumers and customers, regardless of the occasion, their location, and
lifestyle.

Apart from our sales and marketing strategies, we also have new guidelines,
systems, and policies in place to ensure efficient and effective cost
management, sustainable environmental management, and responsible
social engagement.

We convey our sincere appreciation to our Board of Directors for their
valuable guidance. We also wish to acknowledge our employees for their

dedication and professionalism, and most of all, our shareholders, customers,
and consumers for their continued support during this difficult time.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

1 March 2021
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DIRECTORS' REPORT EE2 4%

To be presented at the Fifty-eighth Annual General Meeting of shareholders
to be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two
Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on 26 April 2021 at 3:00
p.m.

The directors submit their Annual Report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark
Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Group for the financial year is set out in note 3 to
the financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEERRMER
The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable to LA THIE AR FE T B EE M EFEF S B AE
the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as follows:  E$4E REREEZEE 2 EF ¢
Percentage of the Group's total
HAREE
The largest customer BARF 38.28%
Five largest customers in aggregate BRREFAR 61.99%
The largest supplier AR IER 6.97%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate BOARERERT 24.82%

One of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest customers was
San Miguel Corporation (“SMC") and its associates (collectively the “San
Miguel Group”) in which Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr.
Ramon G. Torralba, Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Fumiaki
Ozawa, Mr. Reynato S. Puno, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, Mr. Kenji Uchiyama and
Mr. Tomoki Yamauchi have beneficial interests to the extent that they have/
had equity interests in and/or are/were directors and/or officers of the San
Miguel Group.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year have the directors, their
associates, or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in these major customers or suppliers.

ENBAR ([EHEAF]) REEBAR (5K
BIENEE]) BEIAEERLERATFR
Hfbz—o Hep o BENEE - JIERLE
MEEESEAE - Alonzo Q Anchetade 4 - EREREAE -
IINBSRAEA - Reynato S, PUNOSEAE ~ MetEs SE4 -
AL EERLIANESHRLERBREENERZ
BN Sh/ CTHEER SR ASMmME
BHE -
BEXFIEEEN  SES - FEZHEALN
TEESFMEE AARBRABBEEN ZAZ
AARBREARNFEANBRERBTZEFTERFP K
HER 2 (T fal RS o
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RECOMMENDED DIVIDENDS

The directors have resolved that no final dividend be declared for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group's business during the year, including the analysis
using financial key performance indicators, and the outlook of the Group’s
business are provided in the Chairman’s Statement section from pages 7 to
13 of this Annual Report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
which faced the Group in 2020 can be found in the Chairman’s Statement,
including the financial risks mentioned in note 24 to the financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 (“the year under review"), the
business term of the Company’s indirect majority-owned subsidiary in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Co.,
Ltd. ("GSMB"), expired on 29 November 2020 in accordance with GSMB'’s
Articles of Association and the Joint Venture Contract between San Miguel
(Guangdong) Limited (“SMG") and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB”). GSMB is an
equity joint venture formed in 1990 and held as to 70% by SMG and as to 30%
by GB. As a result of the expiry of its business term, GSMB ceased operations
on 30 November 2020 and has commenced the liquidation process on 30
November 2020, in accordance with the applicable laws of the PRC. San
Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Co., Ltd. (“"SMGB"), another PRC subsidiary of
the Company that had been serving as the production source of the beer
products being sold by GSMB under the “San Miguel” related trademarks,
began the selling and distribution of the said beer products in the South
China market commencing 30 November 2020. Announcements were made
by the Company on 28 October 2020, 25 November 2020 and 30 November
2020 in this respect.

Save for those disclosed in the Chairman’s Statement in this Annual Report
and the foregoing, there were no other important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2020.

The Company defines stakeholders as all those who affect, and/or are
affected by, its business. It embraces both internal and external stakeholders,
ranging from employees, trade partners, shareholders, suppliers, government
and local communities. The Company believes that engaging stakeholders
is crucial for the sustainability of its business, as this does not just help
the Company understand the possible risks and opportunities to its
business, but also makes possible the actual mitigation of the risks and
the full comprehension of the opportunities to its business. The Company
also communicates with them through various channels to ensure that
its stakeholders are made aware of and understand its business and/or
products.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE (Continued)

The Company endeavors to protect the environment in which it operates
its business. During the year under review, there was no material non-
compliance in relation to air and greenhouse gas emission, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
The Company also endeavors to further improve the management of the
different Company resources and its operations to prevent pollution and
minimize waste, and is committed to continuously train and encourage all its
employees to be more environmentally conscious.

During the year under review, no material non-compliance of the laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company was noted. In
addition, a discussion on the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) is included in the Corporate Governance
Report section from page 39 to 54 of this Annual Report. A discussion on the
Ccompany’s financial statements’ compliance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) is also included in note 1 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE AND OTHER DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$16,500 (2019: HK$28,500).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 23(b) to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set out
on page 2 of this Annual Report.

During the year under review, all of the directors (including their alternate
directors) served as such for the full year and none of them were appointed
as directors or alternate directors after the last Annual General Meeting;
with the exception of Mr. William C. M. Cheng who resigned as an alternate
director to an independent non-executive director, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P.
Li, on 1 September 2020 due to his retirement from The Bank of East Asia,
Limited, and was replaced by Ms. Sum Li.

Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Ramon G. Torralba, Mr. Kenji Uchiyama and Mr.
Tomoki Yamauchi, retire by rotation in accordance with Article 105 of the
Company’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES MEARESE

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries REZ-ZZE_ZEF+_A=+—HItFEsH=
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 or during the =Z==——F®—F—AZAXNEHRAMILER - AER
period from 1 January 2021 to the date of this Annual Report are available on AR AIfB AR EST N ESZHZEHNA L[]
the Company’s website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk. 48k - 484t & info.sanmiguel.com.hk »

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS EEcHER

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2020 had the following 1% (FEH M EAEIEH]) FEI2 KB EHEF o EEE
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies, zZFEEMEEME R-E-SF+=-A=+—
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the H2ZAAREBEREHBEAAT - HIEERA
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ")) at that date as recorded in the 7] - [MEB AR REMBERT (TR (FH L
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of the — &E{&%1)) BEEITRRA 2 BT «

SFO:

(1)  INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (1) EeBTREAZER

Number of ordinary shares
in the Company
AATZEBRZBRMODER
Number of % of total
CHETCEE issued shares

HERITRG
FREE BBzED L

David K. P Li THE 12,000,000 3.21%

Number shares in
Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc.

Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc. > R4 & B

Par Value Total % of total

Types of (Philippine Direct Indirect  number of issued

Shares pesos) ownership  ownership shares held shares

& EERTRHA

RAER CEEERR) EERE HERE SR¥A4AE A¥zEIL

Ramon S. Ang BEX Common 1.00 75,887 86,658,351 86,734,238 25.907003%
B

Carlos Antonio M. Berba HER Common 1.00 364 — 364 0.000109%
3]

Roberto N. Huang HER Common 1.00 3,039 — 3039 0.000908%
i

Reynato S. Puno Reynato S.Puno  Common 1.00 500 — 500 0.000149%

Carmelo L. Santiago it Common 1.00 500 — 500 0.000149%
3]

[ ]
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued) ERziEa (8
(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) BRIOREZES (8)

Number of shares in
San Miguel Corporation

EHBEARZROEE

Par Value Total % of total

Types of (Philippine Direct Indirect  number of issued

Shares pesos) ownership  ownership shares held shares

& FERTRA

REGER CEEEEZR) HEERE MERE FRYEAY #EIN

Ramon S. Ang BN Common 5.00 1,345,249 373,623,796 374,969,045 9.746136%
i

Carlos Antonio M. Berba HEE Common 5.00 2,600 — 2,600 0.000068%
i

Roberto N. Huang B2ER Common 5.00 42,397 — 42,397 0.001102%
3]

Reynato S. Puno Reynato S.Puno  Common 5.00 5,000 — 5000  0.000130%
i

Carmelo L. Santiago i) Common 5.00 5,000 — 5,000 0.000130%
i

Number of shares In
San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc.
San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc.

ZRBEA
Par Value Total % of total
Types of (Philippine Direct Indirect  number of issued
Shares pesos) ownership  ownership shares held shares
& HEERTRE
RAER CEEERR) BEEE MESE HRYEAY #BAEIML
Ramon S.Ang BRI Common 1.00 10 — 10 0.000000%
Roberto N. Huang B2ER Common 1.00 10 — 10 0.000000%
L&
Carmelo L. Santiago i) Common 1.00 10 — 10 0.000000%
i
Note: Ff5E
Other than the common shares in San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc. (“SMFB”) 4 e HE s T £ 1A San Miguel Food and Beverage,
which were held by Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago as personal interest, all shares in Inc. ([SMFBJ) Frfsa 2 Bk AE AR -
SMFB were held by the directors as corporate interests. RESHE 2B SMFB Z k19 AR Al -
]
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (Continued)

(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued)
Par Value
Types of (Philippine
Shares pesos)
HE
REGER CEEEEZR)
Ramon S. Ang BB common 1.00
i
Carlos Antonio M. Berba ST common 1.00
i
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta common 1.00
L&
Roberto N. Huang HER common 1.00
i
Carmelo L. Santiago MR Common 1.00
i
Kenji Uchiyama AILE= Common 1.00
L&
Tomoki Yamauchi | common 1.00
i
Note:
Other than the common shares in San Miguel Brewery Inc. (“SMB") which were
held by Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago as personal interest,
all common shares in SMB were held by directors as corporate interests.
[
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EERE
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5,000
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5,000
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Total % of total
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ownership shares held shares
EEBRTRE

HERE SRYALAY A¥zEIL
— 5000  0.000033%

— 5,000 0.000033%

— 10,000 0.000065%

— 5000  0.000033%

— 5,000 0.000033%

- 5000  0.000033%
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS (Continued)

(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 31 December 2020, the directors do not have interests in any
underlying shares of the Company, its holding companies, subsidiaries
and other associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted by the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, directors shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his office or elsewhere in relation thereto, provided that its
provisions are not avoided by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Such
provisions were in force during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
remained in force as of the date of this Annual Report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES
The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company’s

issued shares at 31 December 2020 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary
shares in issue:

Substantial shareholders

EFERR

Inigo Zobel (note 1)
Top Frontier Investment Holdings,
Inc. (note 1)
San Miguel Corporation (note 1)
Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (note 1)
San Miguel Food and Beverage,
Inc. (note 1)
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (note 1)
San Miguel Brewing International

IRigo Zobel (F{7E 1)

Inc. (FI5E1)
£ naE (MEET)
BBk &t (FEE 1)
San Miguel Food and Beverage,
Inc. (P¥sE1)
£ B AR (FIEE1)

Limited (note 1)

Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1)
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2)
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (note 2)

Notes:

)

IomMARRA (EE1)

Ifligo Zobel, Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. (“Top Frontier”), the ultimate
holding company, San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), SMFB, Kirin Holdings
Ccompany, Limited (“Kirin") (a principal shareholder of SMB), SMB, and San
Miguel Brewing International Limited (“SMBIL") are all deemed to hold the
above disclosed interest indirectly through Neptunia Corporation Limited
(“Neptunia”) in the Company because each of Ifigo Zobel, Top Frontier, SMC,
SMFB and Kirin holds more than one third of the voting power of SMB. SMB has
a controlling interest in SMBIL and SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

Conroy Assets Limited, which holds 13,624,600 shares of the Company, and
Hamstar Profits Limited, which holds 10,078,400 shares of the Company, are
indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH")
and CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK Hutchison”).

By virtue of the SFO, CKH and CK Hutchison are deemed to be interested in
the shares of the Company held by Conroy Assets Limited and Hamstar Profits
Limited.

Top Frontier Investment Holdings,

EAREERERAR (1)

RIREERERAR (HFE2)
RTIMLEZERAR (HFE2)

FERTERBEMREREBMHZIER
RZZ-_TF+-A=+—8 ' AAREETT

EARRTBRTEBRY 5% RA ENARFADH
TR AR -

Ordinary shares

EERRG

Number of
ordinary % of total
shares held issued shares
HERTRG
s EREA B CED
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%

R AINIgo Zobel ~ Top Frontier Investment
Holdings, Inc. ([Top Frontier]) » A& & #& 2 i%
NF ENERAT  SMFB R E BRI &
A (TEEED (BENBERzEZRRE) &8
REENREB=9 22— A ELZEERE - £
NP R 75 AR D B BB A IR A A ([ A il
BURR 1) 2 AR i 5 % A ) N B B PR 45 75 32 v A
BRAE ([ ) 2 EERiEs - Sutinigo
Zobel - Top Frontier ~ 4 H 4 A &) - SMFB ~ i}
BB A MO R % AE R B PR Y 4 AR R R B
BRGNS E LT BN AN AR 2 o

Conroy Assets Limited$ & 7 A 713,624,600
% A% 19 K2 Hamstar Profits Limited # & 7K 2 &)
10,078,400 % it 15+ HEHEARIBCEZERAR
AR ([RIIGEER]) RRIMEEEGRR
A ([RM)) zEZE2REEHE AR -

WIE(EHFRBEE) RICETRER
15 3 48 A& ¥ B A Conroy Assets Limited &
Hamstar Profits Limited #5752 A RQ &% 15 2 1

¢
&

23



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2020

DIRECTORS' REPORT EE2#H 4%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia provides technical
and advisory services to the Company and may be paid a General Managers'
commission. General Managers’ commission has not been paid by the
Company or charged by Neptunia since the 1995 financial year.

Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Ramon G. Torralba, Mr.
Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Roberto N. Huang, Mr. Fumiaki Ozawa, Mr. Reynato
S. Puno, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, Mr. Kenji Uchiyama and Mr. Tomoki
Yamauchi are interested parties to the above contract and to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions below to the extent that
they have/had equity interests in and/or are/were directors and/or officers of
SMBIL, SMB, SMFB, SMC and/or Top Frontier, the ultimate holding company of
Neptunia.

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations was a party, and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest (other than Mr. Ramon S.
Ang who has a substantial interest in the shares of Top Frontier and SMC
as disclosed in the section “Directors Interests” in this report, and who
accordingly abstained from the voting on the Company’s entering into of
these transactions), subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING MEXSRISEMERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(1)  TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED (1) BHEHEEESEENRHEEESRS

TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group HEE NEFENER

In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered into AGA FTEA . AATIEAE HEATR
an agreement with SMC on 5 March 2019 (“Agreement”) with a view —E-NEF=ZRAHY—HhinEE ([#H
to renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-related continuing HEDRMEFBEN_Z=_ZF—A
connected transactions from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022 —HE-ZE-—F+-A=+—Hi#ErTHE
under the same terms and conditions as those under the agreements BoEBNEERERS  ZBE 26
entered into by SMC and the Company dated 11 March 2005, 6 FiGHBER - EERF=A+—H8 =&
December 2007, 11 May 2009, 15 October 2010, 7 March 2013 and 4 TZ+FE+-_ASB - ZEEZAFHRA+—
February 2016 in respect of such trade-related continuing connected A —Z2—ZEF+A+HH - _F—=
transactions. —AtBEER=ZZE—RF-AMNBEHART

WA NBRRRIY BB S ARNRER
B HE AR -

The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected maE (EREESEENFERERS
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved by PHERSGER) ER-ZZE—NLFNA
independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the ZHARHERARRIMBERER KRS
Company held on 26 April 2019. SLPRER LA o
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following RAFERN  AEBBEREZETUAT
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year. B S EMIIFERELSS -
2020 2020
—E-EF —EB-EF
Actual Cap
B ER
Continuing connected transactions BERERS HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Purchase of packaging materials by the AEBMRAENEE
Group from the San Miguel Group BEBREMR 2,249 39,000
Purchase of packaged beer by the AEBAENER
Group from the San Miguel Group BEOREWR 1,191 3,100
Sales of packaged beer and non-alcoholic REEMENEEEE
beverage products by the Group to the R VYN itk Y/
San Miguel Group, provided that such salesor  Ef @ ZEM TN ERIFREIHE
distribution of packaged beer shall not be (A B A RIS E BRIN)
carried out in the Philippines,
unless through SMB 212,732 285,000
[
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Q)]

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
(Continued)

Purchases from/sales to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqgualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 26 to 27
of this Annual Report in accordance with the Main Board Listing
Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the
Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

GSMB is an equity joint venture formed between SMG and GB and is
held as to 70% by SMG and as to 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned
subsidiary of the Company and GB is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of its substantial shareholding in GSMB. To
facilitate the business operations of GSMB, San Miguel International
Limited (“SMIL") (@ member of the San Miguel Group) and GB have
each granted GSMB a licence to use their respective trademarks upon
establishment of GSMB (the “SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement”
and the “GB Trademark Licensing Agreement”, respectively).

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia (an
indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the SMBIL Sub-licence Agreement
entered into between SMGB and SMBIL (an indirect subsidiary of
SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) consider that
the terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia
Sublicense Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement (collectively,
the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement, including their respective tenures, some of
which are for more than three years, are on normal commercial
terms, fair and reasonable, and that the transactions contemplated
under such agreements are in the interests of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

REX 7R SHEMER S (5)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

30

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-licence
agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the GB
Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements and are exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September 2007
in this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions of
SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB and
the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL effective
1 January 2000 until further notice.

On 1 April 2010, a Deed of Assignment was entered into between
SMIL, SMBIL and GSMB pursuant to which SMIL agreed to assign,
transfer and convey in favour of SMBIL all of SMIL's rights, title and
interest over the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. Both SMBIL
and GSMB consented to such assignment pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment.

After the assignment, SMBIL became the licensor of the trademarks
licensed to GSMB under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. All
other terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned
to SMBIL remain unchanged. The transaction contemplated under the
SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to SMBIL continues
to constitute a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules.

BREXR 5 B i RRE R

(2)

B 3 N e T R R A b SRR BR A AT I
BEEBERS (H)

s EMRANE 1MAMMNIEM S - £ HEHE
Bt (Rt R—RE—X5) REM
REMEIEE AT ER N2 XS ERAR
AZBERERS - AEERERNEN
eSS EE () F‘Jllﬂﬁ/ﬁfﬁﬁ‘%%uﬁﬁﬁ%
& RBE-_TTLF+-_A=t—H81Lt
if&*ﬁ%ﬁﬁé’?/@ﬁiﬁﬁ%*ﬁ%‘l—iﬂﬁx
MBRFREEERN Z2FEFNRES[IN
10,000,000/8 7T » RIFEZE LR - ()&
1SR B R 3 DA B (i) B MR B PR P 43
ApEERENEEET IR HEEERR
RAMBE - WHEHRA BRI AE
ZRUE e

RZZETLFNATNAE  ARFEHUL
YRR

RENR-_ZEZZF+_A+N\BENAR
BIZ IRIER - RE A BB R R
B R ATIBE RS B FEEF
—A—B - FIEHBEMNENRARFZ
HANEEBRRTRETENDBREE - B
EBTRERL -

RZZE-—ZFMOA—HB  £HEER &£
REBRMEMNENFTIERERE &
- ENBERRESENBERER 2B
RS RT ik Zﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬂ P #E M i
& ERNESTENRBEREK - £ HE
BRI K BN E N R BRIREERIEET
LA -

REEEZ - REBREFHE - £H@8
BIBRE AR T BN S AR AT 5 RT
FAA » BIRE 32 A sy
BRATE - IR EMRA - RIBHRRRT
HEREITZ X HBBBR AR B ZFE
RER S e



DIRECTORS' REPORT EE2 4%

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

An announcement was made by the Company on 1 April 2010 in this
respect.

The amount of royalties paid to GB and the San Miguel Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 were HK$1,647,000 and HK$948,000
respectively (2019: HK$1,823,000 and HK$1,041,000).

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2021, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 2 November 2020 to extend the
term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021 at nil consideration. Save for such
extension, all other terms of the Neptunia Sub-license Agreement
remain unchanged.

An announcement was made by the Company on 2 November 2020
in this respect.

As mentioned in the Business Review and Performance section on
pages 16 to 17 of this Annual Report, the business term of GSMB
expired on 29 November 2020. As a result of the expiry of the business
term of GSMB, the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement have been terminated as of the
end of day on 29 November 2020, and GSMB's business operations
ceased on 30 November 2020. Following GSMB’s cessation of
business operations, SMGB, another PRC subsidiary of the Company
that had been serving as the production source of the beer products
being sold by GSMB under the “San Miguel” related trademarks,
began the selling and distribution of the said beer products in
the South China market commencing 30 November 2020. In view
thereof, on 30 November 2020, SMBIL and SMGB entered into a new
trademark licensing agreement (the “New SMBIL Trademark License
Agreement”). The territorial coverage, licensed trademarks, rate and
manner of computation of royalties under the New SMBIL Trademark
License Agreement, among others, are essentially the same as those
under the terminated SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. An
announcement was made by the Company on 30 November 2020 in
this respect.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(2)

32

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
such transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing
the auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 29 to 32 of
this Annual Report in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Riding on the uptrend of
the premium segment, the
Company launched San
Miguel Cerveza Blanca,
our new wheat beer
offering, in December
2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(3)

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials and other materials from the
San Miguel Group during the year, which amounted to HK$793,000
(2019: HK$38,000). The Group also sold raw materials and packaging
materials to subsidiaries of SMC during the year, which amounted to
HK$16,000 (2019: HK$12,000). These transactions are exempt from all
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements according to Chapter 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules (De
minimis transactions). Also, as set out in note 26(a) to the financial
statements, interest expense of HK$2,238,000 (2019: HK$4,303,000)
was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding company. These
transactions are also exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirement according to the
Chapter 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

The Group has complied with the requirements set out in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions and
connected transactions stated above.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS EREAEEE
The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a AR & REEEHBARYE AESIZHIEMHEM
noncontributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong  REBFEARESEE L ABFBENEBHER

Limited Retirement Fund (“Fund”), which covers local permanent employees,
and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance. The Fund's assets are held in trust and administered by
a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based on the employees’
final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to the Fund are made
in accordance with the recommendations of independent actuaries who
value the retirement scheme at regular intervals, usually triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 1 January
2021 and the results were as follows:

(1) the latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was prepared by
independent qualified staff of Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited. In the
actuarial valuation, the attained age method was used. Other major
assumptions used in the valuation were: investment return of 3% per
annum; long-term salary escalation of 4% per annum; mortality rates
under the 2019 Hong Kong Life Tables; normal retirement age of 60
years; and early retirement rates allowed between the ages 55 to 60
years,

2) the unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$111,077,000
as at 1 January 2021;

(3) the minimum level of funding as recommended by the actuary of the

Fund was 4.6% of salaries for 2021, 2022 and 2023; and

(4) the solvency surplus was HK$15,042,000, i.e., the obligation under the
Fund was 116 % covered by the Fund’s assets, as at 1 January 2021.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s working capital at 31 December 2020 was net current assets of
HK$113,520,000 compared with HK$98,622,000 as at 31 December 2019.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at
31 December 2020 were HK$156,109,000 (2019: HK$129,393,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2020.

LOANS

The Group has a loan from an intermediate holding company of
HK$89,035,000 (2019: HK$102,230,000) and a loan from a related company of
HK$3,854,000 (2019: Nil). Total borrowings at 31 December 2020 for the Group
were HK$92,889,000 (2019: HK$102,230,000).

Particulars of the loan from an intermediate holding company and the loan
from a related company of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 144 of this Annual Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 39 to 54 of this Annual
Report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent nonexecutive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.
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AUDITORS BB

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A’ EEF SR T mEETESEET -5
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company isto  FEEEE et SR IEEARA TS 2

be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. FERSNEERRBAFEAE LR -
By order of the board AEEDm

Ramon S. Ang FE

Chairman BREX

Hong Kong, 1 March 2021 BE T —F=H—AH
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &85

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining compliance with statutory
and regulatory standards and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness. The board and the senior management of the
Company ensure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to protect
the interests of the shareholders of the Company. These include a board
comprised of high calibre members, board committees and effective internal
systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG Code throughout
year under review as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save for
the deviation discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term
(Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code) but are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company'’s Articles of
Association.

o The board only met three times during the year under review (Code
Provision A.1.1 of the CG Code), and the chairman of the board and
chairmen of the board committees, who are based in Manila (Code
Provision E.1.2) were not able to attend the Annual General Meeting
in 2020, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and regulations introduced
by the HKSAR government and the Philippine government to prevent
the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic. Matters for board action were
circulated to the directors by written resolutions instead and the
chairman of the board was immediately apprised or updated of the
events which transpired during the Annual General Meeting.

The following sections set out the principles in the CG Code as they have
been applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the year
under review.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2020, the board is comprised of twelve directors (one
executive director, who is the managing director, seven non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive directors) who possess the
skills, experience and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group. The biographies of the directors
are set out from pages 56 to 63 of this Annual Report under the “Directors
and Management Executives” section. There is no financial, business, family
or other material or relevant relationship among the members of the board.
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The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in its
board. It is the duty of the board to create value for the shareholders of the
Company, establish the Company’s strategic direction, set the Company’s
objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide leadership and
ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such objectives. The
board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible and effective
manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries out his duty
in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and direction
of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the board;
preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and operating budget;
and control, supervision and monitoring of capital, technical and human
resources.

The board held three meetings during the year under review. The chief
finance officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board
meetings to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk
management, statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept
detailed minutes of each meeting which are available for all directors. At the
meetings, the directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for the
Company, monitored financial performance and discussed the annual and
interim results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational matters
are delegated to management.

At least fourteen days of notice of all board meetings was given to all
directors, and all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are
sent in full to all directors at least three days before every board meeting.
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The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each REIEFERN  SEEHEFESTeeZNETES
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure €M BEARA T X - BHEANEFTIEEEAL
in brackets indicates the maximum number of meetings in the period in  AEExemkBxdiEEEZEeKE (BEBAIE LM
which the individual was a board member or board committee member (as &) BAEAKRZ S5 K8 -

the case may be).

Scheduled Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
hoard committee committee  committee General
meetings  meetings  meetings  meetings Meeting

ENZAE HMZEE REZEE BX
g3

Independent non-executive directors BUFUTES

Alonzo Q Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta 33 212) N/A 00 0/1)
David K.P Li TEHE 30 2Q2) 2Q2) 0/0)* 0/(1)
Carmelo L. Santiago i =] 213) 1/2) 1/2) 0/0)* 0/(1)
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno 33 N/A 22) 0/(0) 0/1)
William C. M. Cheng BAR

(Alternate to David K.P. L) (FEE7EFES) (1) 0/@2) 0/2) 0/(1) 0/0)* 0/(1)
Sum Li (Atternate to David K.P. L) TR (PEEIEHEE) 2 0/ N/A 0/ 0/0)* N/A
Executive director HITES
Ramon G. Torralba (Managing Director) HEE (#72%) 30 N/A N/A N/A 1101)
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ramon S. Ang (Chairman) BEX(£) 3/3) N/A N/A N/A 0/(1)
Carlos Antonio M. Berba (Deputy Chairman) SEE (B1E) 3/3) N/A 22 N/A 0/(1)
May (Michelle) W. M. Chan BEX 2/3) N/A N/A N/A 0/(1)
Roberto N. Huang =) 313) N/A 22) N/A 0/(1)
Fumiaki Ozawa NEFR 3/B3) N/A N/A N/A 0/(1)
Kenji Uchiyama L= 3/Q) N/A N/A 0/0)* 0/1)
Tomoki Yamauchi WP 30 N/A N/A N/A 0/(1)
* No nomination committee meeting was held during the year under review. * REBEFEANREZEGWREAMEE -
Notes: Ff3E
1. Resigned as alternate director to Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li on 1 September 1. RZEZTFNA—BEATEEE L 2BE

2020. =
2. Appointed as alternate director to Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li on 1 September 2. R-IZ-_ZFENA—BEZTATHEELZ
2020. BIEE-
—
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THE CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang. The chief executive officer (or
managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Ramon G. Torralba. The
chairman’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined to ensure
their independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its
functions, including compliance with good corporate governance practices;
and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors in board
activities and constructive relations between executive and non-executive
directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication with
shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate and
complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by Mr.
Carlos Antonio M. Berba.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of the
Company'’s overall strategies, and coordination of overall business operations.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE

As at the date of this Annual Report, the board consists of eleven non-
executive directors and one executive director. Four of the non-executive
directors are independent. Further details of the composition of the board
can be found in the section entitled “The Board” of this Annual Report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term, but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Under the Company'’s Articles of Association, one-third of the directors, as
well as directors who at an annual general meeting of the Company shall
have been a director at each of the preceding two annual general meetings
and were not elected or re-elected at either annual general meetings, and
who has not ceased to be a director and been re-elected at or since either
at such annual general meetings, are subject to retirement, rotation and
reelection at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of
board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its Articles
of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ INDEPENDENCE (Continued)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields of
accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in the
board ensure that strong independent views and judgment are brought in
the board’s deliberations and that such views and judgment carry weight in
the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and participation also
enable the board to maintain high standards of compliance in financial and
other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the Company and the
Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors to
be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense of
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the board
and management with an appropriate consideration to materiality. As at 31
December 2020, the directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of
the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial reporting
are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 134 to
140 of this Annual Report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company performed the High Level Risk Assessment for the Group
and enhanced the Group's framework for its risk management and internal
control system. Key business objectives and risk parameters were updated
and determined to assess the level of inherent risk.

Based on these business objectives and risk parameters, the key risks of the
Group and improvement opportunities to address these risks were identified.
The Group’s internal controls in place were also tested and evaluated so as
to determine its effectiveness and the level of residual risk.

The Group's risk management framework is based on the “Three Lines of
Defense” model.

1. The Management team is responsible for the continuous identification,
assessment, monitoring and reporting of risks and opportunities in
their respective areas; the planning and implementation of actions
to manage these risks; and escalation of these risks to the Managing
Director and Business Control team that exceed the tolerance limits.

2. The Business Control team conducts periodic review and challenge
of top risks impacting the Group’s strategic objectives; escalates
the top risks to senior management and through them, to the Audit
Committee and the board for their review; and facilitates the risk
management process.

3. The Group Internal Audit Function provides assurance over the
effectiveness of controls in place to manage risk.

For 2020, the board has conducted a review of the Company’s internal
control systems, including financial, operational and compliance control
and risk management functions and assessed the effectiveness of internal
control by considering reviews performed by the audit committee, executive
management, external advisor and internal auditors. It considered that the
Group's risk management and internal control system was effective and
adequate.

The board acknowledges that it has the overall responsibility for maintaining
sound and effective risk management and internal control systems to
safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for
reviewing their effectiveness. However, the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION (Continued)

As a member of a group with multiple listed issuers, the Group shares with
the San Miguel group’s resources in carrying out its internal audit function.
Its internal audit is performed by the internal audit function of its parent
company, San Miguel Brewery Inc. The internal audit function directly reports
to the audit committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND DUTIES

The board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate governance
functions set out below:

(1) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the board;

2) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

(4) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

(5) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is fully cognizant of its disclosure obligations under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Company
has included in its Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions and
Dealings (“Code of Conduct”) and staff handbook a strict prohibition on
the unauthorised use of confidential or inside information. The Company’s
Code of Conduct is further discussed in the “Code of Conduct on Directors’
Securities Transactions” section of this Annual Report.

An Inside Information Policy has been adopted to ensure Inside Information
of the Company is to be disseminated to the public in equal and timely
manner in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. The
Inside Information Policy is available on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
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To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company provides
every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction program on
the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors are provided with
information on the Company’s organization and business; the membership,
duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees and senior
management; corporate governance practices and procedures; and latest
financial information on the operations of the Company. Such information
shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant sites and
meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on the
business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social responsibility
matters and other changes affecting the Company.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

According to the CG Code A.6.5, all directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.
The Company shall be responsible for arranging and funding suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the
directors.

The directors confirm that they have complied with the CG Code on directors’
training. The Company had received from each of the directors their
confirmations on taking continuous professional training.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors: Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago
and Dr. the Hon. Sir David K. P Li, who acts as chairman of the committee.
The audit committee met two times in 2020 with full minutes kept by the
company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee member at
these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in
fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems
and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is further
authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate actions
emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has unrestricted
access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors, risk assessment
and assurance and senior management, as may be appropriate in the
discharge of its functions.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EERAT (A

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) EREER (B)

In 2020, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by: RZZEZZF  BREZESRTEEFNT :

(1) making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of (1) ?fﬁ?l\ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁﬂiH‘]E%ﬁé&ﬁ%?“ﬁf
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms of » DA BRSNS A S B A i BN K2 BE AR ﬂ?k
engagement of the external auditor; B/

2 monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and  (2) RE AN EERINEZ RSB YR
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable BLZEBIEF 2585 mEINEZEETE
standards, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and WZHNE SENAEBRRETE
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

©) implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an external  (3) WMITARR BB BINEZ SR IE 2R
auditor to supply non-audit services; TERIBUR

(@)  reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of  (4) BEIA A GNP ERE « £ RHHISRE
the Company and the Company’s annual and interim reports and the MBSz EEN RS - WESSRH TR - L
auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true and BIRAEBEREZ M EH T EARA T A
balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position; BAF& AR

(5) reviewing the Company'’s financial controls, risk management and  (5) WET AN BRI FSESIE - AR B IR N sl
internal control systems to ensure that management has discharged LIRS NREREEERETREREY
its duty to have effective systems including discussing the risk BHEHERES
management and internal control systems with management;

(6) ensuring the coordination between the internal and external auditors — (6) TR R B0 % S A B OIS #% AT B9 177 3 T =8
and that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and NEZEBINEEEAR RN BN A B HERE
has appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and ERBREERMA - WA R REEREZ
monitoring the effectiveness of the audit function; ThRERY B UM

@) reviewing the Company’s financial and accounting policies and  (7) SEIANRNITE - SRTECRRER
practices,

(8)  reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries  (8) & HNEZBETLL FERE R I - HMNEE
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the ZEEISL e 05k MR B B R
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and the FEEERIMNEMNENREREEEE
management’s response to such queries; and HREE &

(9)  reporting to the board on the matters set out in the CG Code onthe (9) 2T ATEIFHEHREZEESNSE

audit committee.

HRAEFESER -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) EREES (8)

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fees in respect of audit and non-audit
services (mainly tax advisory work and risk management advisory work)
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors amounted
to HK$3,301,000 (2019: HK$3,306,000) and HK$106,000 (2019: HK$94,000),
respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the remuneration committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li,
Mr. Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, and two non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba and Mr. Roberto N. Huang.
The remuneration committee was chaired by an independent non-executive
director, namely Mr. Reynato S. Puno. The remuneration committee met
twice in 2020 with full minutes kept by the company secretary. Individual
attendance of each committee member at these meetings is shown in the
table presented above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of reference
is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s responsibility to the
shareholders of the Company to:

(1) establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top caliber
executives and directors;

2 fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance

and the performance of the Company, and the general pay
environment; and
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEHT (B
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued) FMEEE (&)
©) comply with the CG Code provisions on remuneration of directors,  (3) HEBHEENeEEATIBKRINE
mainly by: £ ARET
. determining executive and director remuneration policy; . ETEITHRA B REENEHMBUR
. determining the remuneration of executive directors upon o EEFERNITESH RS E AN

consultation with the chairman or managing director regarding
their proposals for such remuneration;,

o reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as
appropriate, other senior management; and

o reviewing and approving all equity-based plans.

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The remuneration
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the remuneration committee reviewed the
remuneration package of the managing director and key senior executives.
As recommended, no directors’ fees will be paid for the year 2020.

Details of the remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in note 7 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the year under review, the nomination committee comprised one non-
executive director, namely Mr. Kenji Uchiyama and four independent non-
executive directors: Mr. Alonzo Q. Ancheta, Dr. the Hon. Sir David K.P. Li, Mr.
Reynato S. Puno and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago. The nomination committee is
chaired by an independent non-executive director, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago.
The nomination committee did not meet in 2020.

TR
SHBE

TR BERTE

. el MALEBE R AITESERD
TRABR (HER) EtERE
EAENME &

et AL AP B S R AR E] -

SINEE S BRENRATRITEBERERZ
MEMER  BEREEENIINSERLMERS
RATZNEOEF - HFHEEREARATMRGT
BERNABITERE - AQAFMEMREHAIEK
BRFMEZEGNRERE  mBESETES
RARR R £ - @84k Binfo.sanmiguel.com.hk °

ROBEFEERN ZESRBETEENRTHTE
ERFESHITBRABZEN - ZB2 TN E
—EFEEEEHE -

§$ﬁ1_7_2¢+:ﬁi+*ﬁﬁifgﬁ’\]@ﬂ
SFIFENYBERERMET o

REZES
REBEFERN REZESRE —(IFRNTE
= (B A= E) R B IFRNITE

% (BlAlonzo Q Ancheta%c 4 - TEHBEE + -
Reynato S.Puno e &£ Rl =m L E) - IRBEEE
H— BB UERITEEERRLERETER - R
ZEITF  REZEEUARBERAEE -

49



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEERRE

THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Under its terms of reference, proceedings and meetings of the committee
will be governed by the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association
for regulating the proceedings and meetings of the board of the Company
in so far as they are applicable and not inconsistent with the nomination
committee’s terms of reference. The primary purpose of the committee is to
support and advise the board in fulfilling their responsibilities to shareholders
in ensuring that the board comprises individuals who are best able to
discharge the responsibilities of directors having regard to the law and the
highest standards of governance by:

Q) assessing the skills required for the board;

(2) from time to time assessing the extent to which the required skills are
represented on the board;

(3) establishing the process for the review of the performance of
individual directors and the board as a whole;,

(4) establishing the process for the identification of suitable candidates
for appointment to the board; and

(5) having oversight of matters relating to corporate governance by
bringing any issues to the attention of the board.

The nomination committee has the following responsibilities:

(1) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the board regarding any proposed changes;

() identify individuals suitably qualified to become board members and
select or make recommendations to the board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(3) assess the independence of independent non-executive directors,

(4) make recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer,

(5) have oversight of all matters relating to corporate governance; and

(6) being entitled to employ, at the Company’s expense, the services of
such advisers as it deems necessary to fulfil its responsibilities.
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THE BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In the discharge of its responsibility in item (1), the Committee takes into
consideration, among others, that a diverse board of directors, with the
appropriate qualifications and broad range of expertise relevant to the
Company'’s business, is an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage in the complex business industry that the Company operates, and
embraces the policy that including and making use of increasing diversity
at the board level, which consists of differences in the skills, experience,
background, race, gender and other distinctions amongst directors, is
important to achieve effective corporate governance and sustained
commercial success of the Company. These differences will be considered in
determining the optimum composition of the board and when possible are
balanced appropriately.

In addition, in identifying individuals and making recommendations for
nominations pursuant to its responsibility in item (2) above, the Committee
considers whether such individuals possess the qualifications, ability
and stature that would enable them to effectively fulfill their roles and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. The responsibilities of the
nomination committee in items (1) to (4) above as further set out in its
terms of reference form the key principles that constitute the Company’s
nomination policy.

The nomination committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The nomination
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

CODE OF CONDUCT ON DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct based on the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules (“Model Code”). The terms of the Code of Conduct
are no less exacting than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code
of Conduct applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the said code,
including the directors of the Company, any employee of the Company, or
a director or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company
who, because of such office or employment, are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

There was no non-compliance by the directors with the required standards
set out in the Code of Conduct during the year under review.

EEZRE (B
REEEE (B)

ERTFN)ENELR  ZBEZE (A48
) ZTENEEE  AREEERRELRRT
XGHBNECZERANE  HRBAAREEMR
ENEMEBITENHFEIZEEREK - %%
HEEFENRRR  BREMNBEEEE@EMA
@zt ATRMNKEE & B &k
HRIREEZBEMRRAENX AR RBER
BRNABEEREFHERINERZRE ° &
%%Ehﬁﬁm§$ RBEKKERE BRI
AIREMVIRI TMEE 2 4 -

BESN - FEARIE B QAR B I HAZFEAR
EL%W%X“AELR%%Aﬁﬁkﬁﬁ'%
ZEEKRERZSEARTEBER - e km
Em< I ET ﬁm$ 7%%%%%&
B REZEEELAFMNEWETHREE
(REBEREE — *FEXEU)ﬂiﬁkfﬁﬂ\F?EH B
RABIRIIRRABUR °

REZESERZEDNRRERTERERERE
FEMER  BRESEENIINDERMERHB
RATZNOET - REZEQEARATMRGT
BEFRABITERE - ARFMEMRERHAIEK
BRREZEgNRERE  mMBESETNES
RAR R - @84t ABinfo.sanmiguel.com.hk »

EFETESXAHTA

RABEIRE ETARAMER10FTEM (LA
EFRERTEFRRHMRESTR]) ([1F2E #WH)%
R ST SPRI o RSP SF RGN IR AESF B PR AE 2
BE o migFFRMEARZ TR ENAE

BERAL BRARARES  ARFEAES -
FARFHHBATLERATNESTHEES

ﬁﬁ:lﬁ%%uixﬁlﬁﬁTu%ﬁ%M$
NRHEFFORRMAIEHEER -

REBEFE  WRBEERETT
BEBOBER -

AIFTET RIS 2E

51



San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd. Annual Report 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1 ¥&E78 &
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS ERERAYEE

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective communications
with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to the Company
and its business in its Annual Report and also disseminates such information
electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company also published its ESG Report on its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The ESG Report communicates to the Company's stakeholders in a broad
manner the relevant environmental, social and governance initiatives that the
Company has made in reference to Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules. The 2020
ESG Report will be published in the Company’s website no later than three
months after the publication of the Company’s Annual Report.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address shareholders’
queries. However, for the Annual General Meeting held on 20 April 2020,
most of the directors, including the chairman of the board and chairmen of
the board committees, who are based in Manila, were not able to attend the
meeting due to the COVID-19 pandemic and regulations introduced by the
HKSAR government and the Philippines government to prevent the spread
of the COVID-19 pandemic. All the shareholders of the Company are given
a minimum of twenty business days’ notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company supports the CG
Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’ participation.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

To ensure that the business of the Group is conducted in the highest
standards of fairness, transparency and accountability, the Group has
its Whistleblowing Policy, which establishes procedures and channels
through which the directors, employees and other interested parties
may communicate concerns, in confidence, about any misconduct or
improprieties affecting the Group. The complete text of the Whistleblowing
Policy has been posted on the Company website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.
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DIVIDEND POLICY BRERE

Under the dividend policy of the Company (“Dividend Policy”), The board
may from time to time pay to the Company’s shareholders dividends in the
interim, semi-annually or at other suitable intervals to be determined by
the board, if the board is of the opinion that the position and profits of the
Company justify the payment. In deciding whether to declare dividends and
in determining the dividend amount, the board shall take into consideration
the performance, financial position, liquidity, implementation of business
plans, debt service requirements, operating expenses, budgets, funding
for new investments and acquisitions, appropriate reserves and working
capital, among others, of the Company and its subsidiaries, as well as the
general business and economic conditions. The payment of dividends by the
Company is also subject to the restrictions and conditions under the laws of
Hong Kong and the Company'’s Articles of Association.

The Dividend Policy is subject to review and may be changed by the board at
any time.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
CALLING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings may also be convened on requisition
as provided by Sections 566, 567 and 568 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from shareholders of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having a right to vote at general meetings. The request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting; and may include the
text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. Requests may consist of several documents in like form. The
request may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form;
and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. The directors
must, within twenty-one days after the date on which they become subject
to the requirement, call an extraordinary general meeting which must be
held on a date not more than twenty-eight days after the date on which the
notice convening the meeting is given. If the directors fail to convene the
general meeting, the shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves call an extraordinary general meeting. The meeting must
be called on a date not more than three months after the date on which the
directors become subject to the requirement to call a meeting.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT RBREASEHEZZER

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a relevant right to vote; or not less than fifty shareholders
who have a relevant right to vote may:

— circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of a general meeting, a statement of not more than 1000 words with
respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a proposed resolution to be dealt
with at that meeting; or (b) other business to be dealt with at that
meeting; or

— request the Company to give, to members of the Company entitled to
receive notice of the annual general meeting, notice of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting.

For further details on the shareholder qualifications, and the procedures and
timeline, in connection with the above, shareholders are kindly requested to
refer to Sections 580 and 615 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Further, a shareholder may propose a person other than a retiring director
of the Company for election as a director at a general meeting at which
elections to the office of directors are to be considered. The following
documents must be submitted, no later than seven days before the date of
the general meeting, to the Company at its principal office at 9/F, Citimark
Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary: (a) the Director Nomination
Form with the required supporting documents; (b) the candidate’s resume;
and (c) a written statement signed by the candidate of his/her willingness
to be elected together with (i) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; (ii) the candidate’s written
consent to the publication of his/her personal data; and (iii) confirmation
that there are no grounds for his/her ineligibility and incompatibility to
act as a director and that he/she satisfies the integrity and, if applicable,
independence requirements under the applicable Listing Rules. The complete
text of the procedure for shareholders to propose candidates for election
as directors at general meetings has been posted on the Company website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

SENDING ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company'’s Registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make enquiries
to the board by writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit, Siu Lek Yuen,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES EERITHEEAE

DIRECTORS

Ramon S. ANG Chairman

Carlos Antonio M. BERBA Deputy Chairman
Ramon G. TORRALBA Managing Director

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee
Roberto N. HUANG

Fumiaki OZAWA

Kenji UCHIYAMA

Tomoki YAMAUCHI

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Alonzo Q. ANCHETA

David LI Kwok-po GBM, JP

Reynato S. PUNO

Carmelo L. SANTIAGO

Sum LI, Alternate to David LI Kwok-po GBm, Jp

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, aged 67, is the Chairman and a non-executive Director
of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since 10 June 2005
and a non-executive Director of the Company since 27 November 1998. He
is the Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer of San Miguel
Corporation (a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange); Director,
President and Chief Executive Officer of Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
(the ultimate parent company of the Company) and Petron Corporation (all of
which are companies listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange); Vice Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer of San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc. (a
company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange); Chairman of Eagle Cement
Corporation (a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Petron
Malaysia Refining & Marketing Bhd. (@ company listed on the Kuala Lumpur
Stock Exchange); and Director and President of Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. (a
company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is also Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Officer of SMC Global Power
Holdings Corp. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.);
Chairman of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a company listed on the Philippine
Dealing & Exchange Corp.); Chairman and President of San Miguel Holdings
Corp., San Miguel Equity Investments Inc., San Miguel Properties, Inc. and San
Miguel Aerocity Inc.; Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of SMC Asia Car
Distributors Corp.; Chairman of San Miguel Yamamura Packaging Corporation,
San Miguel Foods, Inc., San Miguel Mills, Inc., Magnolia Inc., The Purefoods-
Hormel Company, Inc., San Miguel Super Coffeemix Co., Inc., Clariden
Holdings, Inc., Anchor Insurance Brokerage Corporation, Philippine Diamond
Hotel & Resort, Inc., SEA Refinery Corporation and Manila North Harbour Port,
Inc.; Director and President of San Miguel Northern Cement, Inc.; and Director,
President and Chief Executive Officer of Northern Cement Corporation. He is
also the sole director and shareholder of Master Year Limited and Chairman
of Privado Holdings, Corp.. Mr. Ang is also the Chairman, President/CEO
and/ or Director of other various subsidiaries of San Miguel Corporation. He

—
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formerly held the following positions: Chairman of Liberty Telecom Holdings,
Inc. and Cyber Bay Corporation; President and Chief Operating Officer of
PAL Holdings, Inc. and Philippine Airlines, Inc.; Vice Chairman of Manila
Electric Company; and Director of Air Philippines Corporation. Mr. Ang holds
a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from Far Eastern
University and a Doctorate in Business Engineering, Honoris Causa, from the
same university.

Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, aged 56, was appointed as Deputy
Chairman and Remuneration Committee member of the Company on 27
August 2010. Mr. Berba has been a Director of the Company since 16 April
2007. He is the Managing Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited; and a Director of Neptunia Corporation Limited (a controlling
shareholder of the Company) and San Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed
on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is also a Commissioner of
PT Delta Djakarta Thk (a company listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange); a
Director of San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Holdings (Thailand)
Limited, San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited, and other subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Berba has over 30 years of experience in general
management, finance, strategic planning and corporate structuring initiatives.
Mr. Berba graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Electrical Engineering. He later obtained a Master’s
degree in Business Administration (with distinction) from the Wharton School
of Business, University of Pennsylvania and a Master’s degree in Japanese
Business Studies from Japan America Institute of Management Science &
Chaminade University of Honolulu.

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, aged 64, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Managing Director of the Company with effect since 15 January 2013.
Mr. Torralba is also the Chairman and Director of San Miguel (Guangdong)
Brewery Co., Ltd. since 2013, and was the Chairman and Director of
Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Co. Ltd. from February 2013 to April 2020.
He was the Vice President and Manager for Export Development of San
Miguel Brewing International Limited (a subsidiary of San Miguel Brewery
Inc.) from 2008 to 2012 and was also a Director of San Miguel Beer (Thailand)
Limited and Commercial Director of San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Ltd.
from 2004 to 2007. He also served as Assistant Vice President of the Beer
Division of San Miguel Corporation from 1997 to 2006. Mr. Torralba graduated
from Zamboanga A.E. Colleges with a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Commerce, major in Accounting. He also attended the Management
Development Program at the Asian Institute of Management (International
School of Business and Management) in the Philippines in 1991. Mr. Torralba
is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the Philippine Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Alonzo Q. ANCHETA, aged 88 was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 February 2017. He is currently
an Independent Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.) and PTFC Redevelopment Corporation
(@ company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is the President of
Zobella & Co. (A.Q. Ancheta & Partners): Trademark & Patent Attorneys and the
Co-Founding Partner/ Senior Adviser of Quasha Ancheta Pena & Nolasco Law
Offices. He is also the Chairman and President of Ogilvy & Mather Philippines,
Inc.; President of Growe Investments Ltd.; and a Member of the Board of
Trustees of St. Luke's Medical Center. Mr. Ancheta also provided service
for the Philippine Government as the Administrator of National Tobacco
Administration (1987 - 1990). Mr. Ancheta graduated from the University of
Manila with a Bachelor’s degree in Arts (Magna cum Laude) in 1953 and a
Bachelor's degree in Laws (Cum laude) in 1957. He is a lawyer (A.B., LL.B) by
profession, with practice areas in intellectual property law and commercial/
corporate/family law and estates and succession. He is also a member of
various organizations, including the Intellectual Property Association of the
Philippines (Council Adviser, 1988- present), Philippine Bar Association, Legal
Management Council of the Philippines, Asian Patent Attorneys Association,
International Trademark Association, LAWASIA (Vice President International,
2017-present), Licensing Executives Society International, ASEAN Law
Association, ASEAN Intellectual Property Association, American Chamber
of Commerce of the Philippines, Canadian Chamber of Commerce of the
Philippines, Philippine American Guardian Association, Philippine-Japan
Economic Committee, Philippines-Japan Society, Inc., Rotary Club of Marikina,
Jaycees International (Senator) and For Love of Mother Earth, Inc..

Ms. May (Michelle) CHAN Wen Mee, aged 56, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 11 March 2011. Ms. Chan serves as Managing Director
of A.S. Watson Industries Limited. She served as Managing Director of
Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited from 1 February 2006 to 31 October 2010
and served as Executive Deputy Managing Director of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited from 18 May 2005 to 31 January 2006. Ms. Chan has extensive
experience in managing property development and investment businesses in
mainland China. She also holds directorships in certain companies controlled
by CK Hutchison Holdings Limited. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration.
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Mr. Roberto N. HUANG, aged 72, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company on
8 November 2012. Mr. Huang is a Director and the President of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.);
and a Director and the Chief Operating Officer - Beer of San Miguel Food and
Beverage, Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is
also a Director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited and San Miguel
Malaysia Pte. Ltd., and the Chairman and President of Iconic Beverages, Inc.,
Brewery Properties Inc., and Brewery Landholdings, Inc. Mr. Huang graduated
from the Mapua Institute of Technology with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Mechanical Engineering and completed academic requirements for a
Master’s degree in Business Administration from De La Salle University. He
also attended the Nagoya International Training Center, Japan International
Cooperation Agency Grant for Metal Works Engineering and Numerical
Control Machines course.

Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, GBM, GBS, OBE, JF, MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier), Hon.

D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie), Hon.
DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITR, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne,
Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays
with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur, aged 81, was
appointed on 22 March 1991. Sir David is an independent non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is the
Executive Chairman of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (listed in Hong Kong). He
is an independent non-executive Director of Guangdong Investment Limited,
The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai
Hotels, Limited and Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (all listed in Hong
Kong). He was an independent non-executive Director of PCCW Limited (listed
in Hong Kong). Sir David is a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. He is Founding Chairman of The Friends of Cambridge University
in Hong Kong Limited, Chairman of the Advisory Board of The Salvation Army,
Hong Kong and Macau Command, Chairman of the Executive Committee of
St. James’ Settlement and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy of Finance. He
was a member of the Executive Council of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008 and
the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2012.

Mr. Fumiaki OZAWA, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 28 April 2017. He is also a Director and the Executive Vice
President of San Miguel Brewing International Limited. He is also a Director
of San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited
and San Miguel Marketing (Thailand) Limited; and a Commissioner of PT
Delta Djakarta Tbk (@ company listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange). Mr.
Ozawa was a former Director and Executive Financial Advisor of San Miguel
Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.),
the Senior Manager of Corporate Strategy Department of Kirin Holdings
Company, Limited and Senior Manager of Management Planning Department,
Kirin Company, Limited. He was also the Manager of Management Planning
Department of Kirin Company, Limited; Manager of Overseas Sales Division,
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Kirin Techno-System Company, Limited and Sales Representative of Off-
premise Sales Section, Tohoku Regional Head Office, Kirin Brewery Company;,
Limited. Mr. Ozawa graduated from Waseda University with a bachelor’s
degree in Economics.

Mr. Reynato S. PUNO, aged 80, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and Nomination Committee member of the Company on
8 November 2012 and as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 24
February 2017. Mr. Puno is an independent Director of San Miguel Corporation
(a company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), and Union Bank of
the Philippines, Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange),
and an Independent Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Tbk (a company
listed on the Indonesia Stock Exchange). He is also the Chairman of the
Environmental Heroes Foundation and World Vision; Vice Chairman of GMA
Kapuso Foundation; and a Director of The New Standard newspaper. Mr. Puno
served as the Chief Justice of the Philippine Supreme Court from 6 December
2006 until his retirement on 17 May 2010. He also served previously in the
Philippine judiciary as an Associate Justice of the Supreme Court, Associate
Justice of the Court of Appeals, Appellate Justice of the Intermediate
Appellate Court and City Judge of Quezon City. He also served as Assistant
Solicitor General and Deputy Minister of Justice. Mr. Puno completed his
Bachelor of Science degree in Jurisprudence and Bachelor of Laws degree at
the University of the Philippines, and has a Master of Laws degree from the
University of California in Berkeley and a Master in Comparative Laws degree
from the Southern Methodist University, Dallas, Texas. He also completed
academic requirements for a Doctor of Juridical Science degree from the
University of lllinois.

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, aged 78, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company from 4 September 2007, Chairman
of the Nomination Committee from 27 April 2012, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee from 4 September 2007. He is
an Independent Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a company listed on the
Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.) and San Miguel Food and Beverage, Inc.
(@ company listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and the Chairman of the
Aurora Pacific Economic Zone Freeport Authority. Mr. Santiago is the founder
of Wagyu Restaurant and also the founder and chairman of Melo’s chain of
restaurants in the Philippines. He is a former Director of the Company from
27 February 2003 to 23 February 2005 and Terbo Concept, Inc., and a former
independent director of Liberty Telecoms Holdings Inc. Having over 40 years
of directorate positions in various companies in the Philippines and Hong
Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive experience in foods, beverages, publication,
properties, power and banking industries.
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Mr. Kenji UCHIYAMA, aged 56, was appointed as a non-executive Director
and member of the Nomination Committee of the Company on 13 April
2018. Mr. Uchiyama is a Director and the Executive Vice President of San
Miguel Brewery Inc. (@ company listed on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange
Corp.) and a Director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited, San
Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited, San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited,
Iconic Beverages, Inc., Brewery Properties Inc. and Brewery Landholdings,
Inc.. He was also the Executive Officer and General Manager of Corporate
Planning Department of Kirin Brewery Company, Limited; a Director of
Diageo Kirin Company, Limited, Heineken Kirin Company, Limited, Eishogen
Company, Limited, Kirin Distillery Company, Limited and The Brooklyn Brewery
Corporation; and the President and Chief Executive Officer of The Brooklyn
Brewery Japan Company, Limited. Mr. Uchiyama also held the following
positions in the Kirin group: Deputy General Manager of Sales Department, in
charge of Off-Premise Sales of Kirin Beer Marketing Company, Limited; and
Head of Sales Promotion Section of Sales Department of Kirin Beer Marketing
Company, Limited. Mr. Uchiyama graduated from Keio University with a
Bachelor’s degree in Social Psychology.

Mr. Tomoki YAMAUCHI, aged 53, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 October 2017. Mr. Yamauchi is a Director and
the Executive Financial Advisor of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (a company listed
on the Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp.). He is also a Director of San
Miguel Brewing International Limited and San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited.
He was previously the Senior Manager of Accounting Department of Kirin
Company, Limited; Senior Manager of Planning Department of Kirin Beverage
Company, Limited; Senior Manager of Management Planning Department of
Kirin Company, Limited; Senior Manager of Accounting Unit Group Finance
of Kirin Holdings Company, Limited; and Senior Manager of Finance and
Accounting Department of Kirin Group Office Company, Limited. Mr. Yamauchi
graduated from Keio University with a bachelor’s degree in Economics.
He also completed a program for Management Development in Harvard
Business School.

Ms. Sum LI, CIA, FCCA, FHKICPA, aged 49, is the Group Chief Auditor of
The Bank of East Asia, Limited. She is currently serving as President of The
Institute of Internal Auditors Hong Kong. Ms. Li is a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and
a Certified Internal Auditor. She was previously a Partner at KPMG's Risk
Consulting group and is a Past President of The Asian Confederation of The
Institutes of Internal Auditors. Ms. Li holds a Master Degree of Science in
Finance from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Ramon G. TORRALBA
Managing Director

John K.L. CHEUNG
Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Richard W.K. CHAN
General Sales Manager

Eric W.M. CHEUNG
Senior Manager — Information Technology

Steven CO
Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Eric PK. LAM
Marketing Director

Edith .M. NG
Senior Manager — Human Resources & Administration

Kenneth W.S. YEUNG
Senior Manager — Operations

Ric W.T. YEUNG
Senior Manager — Logistics

Vincent K.M. KWOK
General Manager of San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited

Mr. Ramon G. TORRALBA, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors
section on page 57 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, MBA, BBA, aged 57, Chief Finance Officer & Company
Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member of the
Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 34-year solid experience
in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung received a
Master’s degree and a Bachelor’s degree, both in Business Administration,
from Georgia State University, USA.

Mr Richard W.K. CHAN, vsc, aged 52, General Sales Manager, joined the
Company in 2016. Mr. Chan has over 34 years of sales experience from
various industries.

Mr. Eric W.M. CHEUNG, DBA, MBA, MSc, BSc, aged 58, Senior Manager —
Information Technology, joined the Company in 1993. Mr. Cheung has gained
34 years of solid experience in the operations and management of the
Information Technology functions.
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BELNCAHERAT —B-BEER

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES EERITHEL

EAE

Mr. Steven CO, BA, aged 51, Senior Manager — Corporate Development,
joined San Miguel Brewing Group of San Miguel Corporation in 1994. Mr.
Co has more than 26 years of experience in business planning, business
research, corporate affairs and quality management in the Company.

Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, MBA, BA, aged 57, Marketing Director, joined the Company
in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 27 years of experience in marketing in various
industries.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, mBA, Dip, aged 58, Senior Manager — Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained 34 years of
experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Kenneth W.S. YEUNG, MB4, 8sc, aged 55, Senior Manager-Operations,
first joined the Company in 1988. Mr. Yeung has over 31 years of service
with the Company. He has extensive experience in the operations of beer
production.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, 884, aged 57, Senior Manager — Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. Mr. Yeung has more than 37 years of extensive experience
in supply planning, procurement, physical distribution and import & export.

Mr. Vincent K.M. KWOK, MBA, BBA, aged 52, was appointed as the Managing
Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited on 1 January
2011, and was assigned to be the General Manager of San Miguel (Guangdong)
Brewery Company Limited on 1 January 2021. Mr. Kwok joined the Company
in 2003. He has more than 29 years of solid experience in marketing and
management in various industries.
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS &&=t 04T

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HET-_A=1T—HILFE ' BREK
per share data and number of personnel AR EIE K& B T ABIMILABEE T ILat &
Ten Year Review O
2020 2019 2018
—EoEE —E—AE —E-N\E
Revenue WA 555,658 580,050 584,609
Profit/(loss) from operations (1) rear, (850 14,920 7,788 (64,690)
Profit/(loss) for the year (1) FERMN (B () 13,851 8,300 (74,088)
Taxes paid, including beer tax TR T T 11,068 13,825 17,338
Cash dividends attributable to the year FEELESKRE — — —
Cash dividends per share (cents) RIS (L) — — =
Non-current tangible assets and projects FRBEREERERFIEE
under development 465,291 474,377 487,708
Net worth FE 543,011 515,914 500,668
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TARHMET 121,179 122,952 123,067
Number of personnel (2) BTAH () 517 491 516
(M Profit from operations and profit for 2012 have been restated for the change in accounting policy for employee benefits.
2 Number of personnel represents actual headcount of regular personnel as of the last working day of the year.
|
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS £&& &5t #r

BET-_A=+T—HILFE  BER
Wein BdE % 8 T ABIMGAREE TITat&E

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except
per share data and number of personnel

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—T—tF TEREF —“T—hF —T—pus —E-=4F - F —F——%F
(restated)
(E355))
565,785 541,427 569,502 728,640 687,093 686,362 683,879
20,692 11,505 (11,555) 41,635 28,674 243,428 (48,365)
15,219 6,705 (16,909) 36,994 25,824 226,976 (68,638)
13,432 10,494 15,984 20,670 19,614 26,683 36,009
— = = 7,472 3,736 = =
— _ _ 2 1 _ _
576,388 584,806 597,381 621,309 635,893 654,678 389,671
584,811 558,084 544,986 571,949 543,678 511,836 297,223
121,606 116,014 118,421 116,888 106,631 104,724 101,023
516 539 549 566 587 606 635
() EEENER-T-—ErANBHESEN SHREREES -
@) %I/\%ﬂﬁﬁ@i@%%*fI1’EBZ%’T@§%%&§H§A”}E\I%{E °
—
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #R&

SREK

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_T_FTFF_A=F+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2020 2019
s o A —NF

Note $'000 $'000

s Fr Tt
Revenue WA 3 555,658 580,050
Cost of sales FHER A (312,267) (321,204)
Gross profit EF 243,391 258,846
Other net income Hith a5 58 4 40,722 26,972
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEEX (169,265) (190,156)
Administrative expenses TEFAX (90,398) (80,127)
Other operating expenses et (9,530) (7,747)
Profit from operations KB 14,920 7,788
Finance costs W5ER 5(a) (2,373) (4,478)
Profit before taxation BREL AT Z A 5 12,547 3,310
Income tax credit FRSBEET A 6 1,304 4,990
Profit for the year FEER 13,851 8,300
Attributable to: FE(ENE :
Equity shareholders of the Company RARE=FEAA 17,228 11,583
Non-controlling interests Bl s (3,377) (3,283)
Profit for the year FEEZR 13,851 8,300
Earnings per share ERER
Basic (cents) EA (L) 10(a) 5 3
Diluted (cents) s () 10(b) N/A Tl A N/A TiE A

The notes on pages 72 to 133 form part of these financial statements.
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EEENEERARAT —B_BFFR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4 & 2 HEUNEF

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_ZE-_BF+-_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2020 2019
—E-SE —E—NF
Note $'000 $'000
BdaE F Tt
Profit for the year FERF 13,851 8,300
Other comprehensive income FEHMGE2EKE (REE)
for the year (after tax) 9
Items that may be reclassified subsequently B e EF A B AEE
to profit or l0ss
Exchange differences on translation of financial — FaE ZINf B A TR 15 EhER &
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong — FE#E B BRI E A 7
and monetary items that form part of ZERENERIREMEEZ
the net investment in subsidiaries MEH =58
outside Hong Kong 4,203 (1,225)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or [0Ss & E# A B EEH
Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit BRI S
retirement plan TEE BF & EsE 9,043 8,252
13,246 7,027
Total comprehensive income for the year F£E2HEIKZHEEE 27,097 15,327
Attributable to: FE{RTNR :
Equity shareholders of the Company ARARERZFEA 32,445 17,982
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A (5,348) (2,655)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2MHIKFEE 27,097 15,327

The notes on pages 72 to 133 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #%r& Bt i& AR 3=

At 31 December 2020
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

+=A=+—¢©

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT—NF
Note $'000 $'000
B 5T Ft T
Non-current assets REBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE - MBENERE 1(a) 348,409 352,764
Investment properties B 1(a) 116,882 121,613
465,291 474,377
Intangible assets R AE 12 4,771 4,771
470,062 479,148
Current assets REBEE
Inventories R 14 56,709 51,027
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 K& H b BRIA 15 42,775 51,399
Amounts due from holding companies and el NN
fellow subsidiaries EEI =G 16 16,829 19,595
Amount due from a related company FEULREE N RIBRIR 16 1,260 1,492
Bank deposits |ITER 17 43,770 22,661
Cash and cash equivalents HReRkERREIER 17 112,339 106,732
273,682 252,906
Current liabilities nEBE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 K A BRIE 18 (83,027) (83,301)
Loans from related companies FENRZER 19 (54,731) (51,115)
Amounts due to holding companies and R AR K
fellow subsidiaries GEAGI=NGE 16 (9,418) (9,410)
Amounts due to related companies FETES:E A FIBRIA 16 (12,975) (8,632)
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 (11) (932)
Current tax payable FES IR 21 — (894)
(160,162) (154,284)
Net current assets REBEERE 113,520 98,622
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #r& Bt #& AR 3=

At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZF+-_A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-hF
Note $'000 $'000
iz F Ft
Total assets less current liabilities REERABEME 583,582 577,770
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Loans from related companies FENTZER 19 (38,158) (51,115)
Retirement benefit liabilities RNETAE 20(a) (2,378) (10,741)
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 (35) —
(40,571) (61,856)
NET ASSETS BEFE 543,011 515,914
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA % {4
Share capital R AR 23(b) 252,524 252,524
Other reserves H A 324,005 291,560
Total equity attributable to equity RATIRERTE ABEGRER
shareholders of the Company 576,529 544,084
Non-controlling interests Eealiig (33,518) (28,170)
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 543,011 515,914
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 1 March 2021. CHEFEN _T_—F=A—BibERERETE -

Ramon S. Ang BEREX Ramon G. Torralba HER
Director s Director EF
The notes on pages 72 to 133 form part of these financial statements. FINE72EBE 2 FEMT RAM B #RE 2 —36
,T/'\ °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY & &R # B3k

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_T-_TF+_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHETE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KATEEREARERG
Exchange Non-
Share Capital  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
B Exfits EXRDRE Wit At FERER ERAE
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
iz 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE
—B—R&s# 252,524 112,970 76,304 84,304 526,102 (25,515) 500,587
Changes in equity for 2019: “E-NEEREE
Profit/(loss) for the year FEBHN/ (BR) - - - 11,583 11,583 (3,283) 8300
Other comprehensive income A2 ENE 9 - - (1,853) 8,252 6,399 628 7,027
Total comprehensive income FERENGER
for the year — — (1,853) 19,835 17,982 (2,655) 15,327
Balance at 31 December 2019 RA=B-A&
and 1 January 2020 == HE 252,524 112,970 74,451 104,139 544,084 (28,170) 515914
___________________________ T T e
Changes in equity for 2020: “ECEEREET.
Profit/(loss) for the year FRBF/ (BB) - - - 17,228 17,228 (3,377) 13,851
Other comprehensive income HthzElE 9 - - 6,174 9,043 15,217 (1,971) 13,246
Total comprehensive income FEZHNEETE
for the year - - 6,174 26,271 32,445 (5,348) 27,097
Balance at 31 December 2020 R=Z=%f
TZA=t-A&H 252,524 112,970 80,625 130,410 576,529 (33,518) 543,011
The notes on pages 72 to 133 form part of these financial statements. HIRE72E1BE 2 FEM T AR BEHRE 2 — 8B
1/'\ °
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT & RERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-_ZT-_TF+_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (Mﬁé’#]ﬂﬁrﬁ)
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NE
Note $'000 $'000
iz F Tt
Operating activities REEK
Cash generated from operations IR IS A 17(b) 46,081 37,397
Tax paid: EANHIE ¢
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — BRABEBENEH (874) =
Net cash generated from REEBZBHERA
operating activities R 45,207 37,397
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for the purchase of non-current assets A& IER B & E TN a8 (13,630) (10,807)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets  HEIERBEVEE TS 5K1E 2,489 2,229
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits RITER (%) E (21,109) 14,057
Interest received A &IES) 1,287 1,592
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEZFEZ2EHE ORH) KRA
investing activities RE (30,963) 7,071
Financing activities RMEED
Proceeds from new loans from FER RIS EFRFA
related companies 17(c) 3,854 —
Repayment of loans from related companies BATREARZER 17(c) (12,719) (12,779)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERHEERNEARID 17(c) (943) (1,085)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERNFEHH 17(c) (15) 37)
Interest paid EFE 17(c) (2,238) (4,303)
Net cash used in financing activities REEBH2RERH EEE (12,061) (18,204)
Net increase in cash and ReRERRELER
cash equivalents ZIREEIE N 2,183 26,264
cash and cash equivalents R—B—HZH%
at 1 January RERREERER 17(a) 106,732 81,091
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes [EXR@ g 82 3,424 (623)
cash and cash equivalents at R+=-—A=t+—BzH&
31 December RERREERER 17(a) 112,339 106,732
The notes on pages 72 to 133 form part of these financial statements. HREE1BE 2 SEMTFAARMBEHRE 2 —6
,T/'\ °
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72

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 significant accounting policies 1 FESHBK

(@) Statement of compliance (@) ErE
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all R EHRERIIEIEFIEER 2 BBV EHRE
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”), which B ([BEPIEMELED]]) MR - [ FHF
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial B REER| | — A ER S AEE
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and 2z A ERNER BB IFRE LR - &
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public BERTER ([HAGER]) ke - &5
Accountants (“"HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong NReHRBIRES CARVMED)Y Z1RE 3%
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. EPHRENMETEBHEZFER AR
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure A LA ([ T8 ZEARES
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock E o AEERACEESHBERMENT -
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.
The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that are first Eh et e BhnE TRIES 2B AR
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period FRIREER|  WAANEEFZ ASHBRE L
of the Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting SRR R RN c BRERRFEAR
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the REE Y FETEDMSI BN E AR A FESET
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current accounting Mz A BER 2B E RN AT BRE A
period reflected in these financial statements. [RBR - BRAERERMIEE1(C)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) wEBBBEHmK LR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December BE_E-ZF+-_A=1+—RHIEEZ%
2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as EUBmMERBEARARENB AR (515
the “Group”). RIAER]) -
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial BAFSERR T AR SE B AN B w15 B E
statements is the historical cost basis.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires IR A BB BRRELELBBEREE R
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect EREFLeYEIREAREE  AF -
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, WA BB R RE BB HE - iR B
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are RIRTE o (et R EBERRDIBEAELR K
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed ZEAMEEEBIER TEAEMEMEZEM
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form Bl EERK AU EEMIRIT TEAS
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and RRNEEEHaERMEEL I ANERE - &
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results e = S A e i
may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing HEt RABEBREHERT - HgFHHaTE
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 1TIBETRS - BSET R 2R - Bligs]2
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in EEET IR N ER » BB 2%
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both HA R R EAR - AIE(E T SR 2R BRFEI SR ©
current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSS that FLER A B8 B S R S YE RIS AT VE L 9 U
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of UREEE TN —FE 2B ERREXEKXT
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2. B 2 AET TR AR I RMIEE2 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEHEE®

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) EBXNEH
The HKICPA has issue a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first BEeASEBHZEEEETIETRE
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. LERIWEE] - WRAEBRARTNSEE

STERR B IR AR ©

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the EMMZEEITRBHAEBERA R BIN
Group'’s results and financial position for current or prior periods have EENGRABRERMEZE - KEE
been prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new standard S AR ER AR AR 5A AN HR & 5 HA R 18 2R AR AU
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period. KRB o

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MHEBARIREZERER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no gain or loss is recognised.

HEARIRIERASEIZFINERE - EA%
BR2EXEEMEAXERZAIHNME
% BRAAEABEEZERNZEHRZEGEL
CIEREVEE N BS - BEEH] T2 B RS o ZERTAA
SERTAAEHIEE  EERELEN
(HAKEREMTIFE)

RIS R R 2 & R AR 1 5f A&
EMBHREAN  BEEGIERIEAILE - AE
BARR Mz &R RHRBARE - A
RZGREL 2 ERARZERAN - IR
A MG RRETEIRE - MERERE -
AEBARR 2Bz R BMES 2 RERE
18 TIARERAMBERZHAEHE -

R TR AERBENARA]
MM B AR MARBEREZESRA
FEREMAMMGZE  HLEEBE EHZ
SHDELNAMBREERNEERS
HRBHRAXAN  KERDEEUALAEE
AR E R B A AR EEFENMIGE
{IRER IR A S

IR AR A M SRR AR B R
SR BT BN S E R RER DR o IF
A A S B FE NGB B IBELR
BRERAD BRI g S M AT B BN A
NP RESET 2R -

AEBENHE R B 2 BB RS S
BERNRF  BEENFXZAR  BE
DHEZIA T 2 R R IR B s (F B A
[REERE R EE) - BT FER B -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@
(d) subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued) (d) MEARRFZRER (B

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a MRAEEBKREMBAB 2 =S - ZIBEX

disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or SEREEZWB AR HERCE  HE

loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former T HERIBZ - TR AEBFRE ZBIHE
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and NEFSEREEAITHEE A BERR

this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial ZELAECREEVRERZALE AR
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment B AR R ERIESEE ZVIRIEERAR
in an associate or joint venture. (sEmA) -

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, an investment in a EARARRZHBRREZA - BRI

subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1())). AR EEE (RMEE10)) 5K ©

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) W% - HeSkFXE

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost MEZEIRBUKINEERBEEE (BT

less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)), with 10) FUBRSN - AT EY W% - 1E8 KR IBIERK

the exception of construction in progress which is stated at cost less any AR EFTITE KOREEEIER (RKIEE13) -

impairment losses (see note 1())):

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold properties — EAREEWIEMERER 2 FMERA
when the Group is not the registered owner of the property ZIERTEABHEEREZFEH
interest; and BEE &

— items of plant and equipment including right-of-use assets arising — BIEEA B E R REREZ(F
from leases of underlying plant and equipment (see note 1(g)). AHEEAE #ELREEE (AN

Q)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of WEESK L EME  MEREBEIER CRE

property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between THEMBSRIEFEN N EHEEREEY

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are ER o WHARESHE BEBEFHER -
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant PETIHEMEE - a8 KRB AR E A5

and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using the SHEME (WE) EH TG ER T

straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows: A B AT E My -

— Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired term of lease. — DEAMEHRE T LN RERE

EERETE -

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the — ERETH FNERAKREREE
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful R HAAET I A FE (PR R+
lives, being no more than 50 years. F) MERRRHMINE -

— Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 210 50 years — 2R BB MEZRTF

HKREE
— Motor vehicles 5107 years
- X hEELEF

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until EEIENEETK LA RAFERITE:

such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for use. RITE -

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different BIEYE  BBEMEREZZBHETRY

useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis AIEAGFE - IBE B ARSI e

between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful R - MM BIERBIITE - RNER

life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually. BERNEEZAERFHELEFIRER
(mF) -
[ ]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®

()  Investment properties ) REWHE
Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held BEMEABRRESWAR A RIEE
under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or for miEARERERED (RWF1Q) FEH0
capital appreciation. THREE °
Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation B EIRA AR 25T E KR EE RS
and impairment losses (see note 1(i)(ii)). Depreciation is calculated to write (RBIEE10)0)  FTE THE IR E W E Rk AR H
off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated residual values, FIpBE (WE)  EAREmASE N EET
if any, using the straight-line method over the shorter of the unexpired AMERFE (TMRBBERTF) ME TSGR
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 LAE AT E s -
years.
Both the useful lives of the investment properties and their residual REMENTFEAFEREFSREE (WE)
values, if any, are reviewed annually. EIRF RS -
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described 1% & ) E W & U AR 5 T 5F 10l Pt 75
in note 1(r)(i. NEtHE -

(8) Leased assets (g) WHEEE
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or REBREANRBEIEEOERERN (5
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys BE)HE - MEaH %?’ﬁﬂlﬁﬁ ez E—
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in BREREAESI BB EEER 2 ERN - BIZ

exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract contains lease component and non-lease component,
the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and
accounts for each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the
Group are primarily laptops and office furniture. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

BHER (Eea) HE - MEFHAEET
E&%Jﬁ?Zﬁﬂ% NERREACHRIEE
BRI BN - AEHIEE 58

HNBEHEERY MIFRERD 2EH - &
SEDEZNFEERS DREE M2
RAARE RS RERH )SZTEH*EF%Z?ETE
BN ERE—THEND

AEBREER KA RERAEREEELE
ﬁﬁﬁ HABA T ZEASKAT 228

SHEEEEE RAKEMEETERTIEE
Eaﬂ“&#ﬂ#"*%m) ZHEERS - BAREE
SEEEEETVHER  AREFRHE
ZERERREREHEEEAR - BZF
YAREANMEZEERBZEENFKNERA
B REUHER R -

EREENZBERT HEREVIZRHE
HNREMNEEN R RERER  AEHRE
EREZHRY (1hﬁf‘§ﬂ1‘¥ﬂﬁ3m) el
HEREFEIR - RVITHERIR - HER
BRI R AGT B - MA B ERERA
KL E - I EHERBER TG AALIFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf#& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®

(8) Leased assets (Continued) (g) MHEEE®
The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially RIEEERCEER 2 (F AEEEVFIRK
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability AitE B piEHEaE s VReEmn L
plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, FE B ik 2 ATYEH 2 AR S [ RUA &
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the FREEEZVBRBEZENR - EEAEN
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and T - AR EE 2T EFREL SR E
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site B ESEEMRBEENEHAES 2 (5T
on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any lease KA FREHRE) B FEA W HAE
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost BE - FRAEESEERIEKNAINKRETITE
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(e) and Mo EEE (R 1e) & 10)i0) 58 °
).
The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future WIS N RSB EYRKEENHEE
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there is a EJ%K%lﬂi‘EHME?‘FﬁJﬁ%E{Em%zB’gﬁi
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable %,E\ﬁﬂ’EZ{ﬁéfﬁﬁ S EAAEBREH T ER
under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from the AERBEMITEEE Lﬁﬁzfﬂﬁ%%@é
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise ﬂﬁ&éﬁz“ CRIEMFTEHERE o (Wil E
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability BEELHEBEBRTEHTS /a\ug@m*gﬁ
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the EZEREEFEEERE = (MERREE
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if ZEAEDREE) BERARYIAEE -
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of AEEBTHFEREYMETEZFREEE
investment property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and presents lease Z5R T - S RE ﬁj WA BT 75
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of financial position. MRRBYEVHERE

(h) Intangible assets (hy EBREEE
Intangible assets represent acquired trademarks and club debentures and IS K & B B RE B AR AR =R B S 1B 71 BR
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(i)i). (RBEEE10)D) -
These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are ZEBEEWESRY BRAEAFERFH
assessed to be indefinite and are tested annually for impairment (see note WG BIREE M EEAERBENS (RH
1. FE0))
The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite ﬂﬂ/ﬁFZ‘J@Eﬂ%EHﬂTﬁEEE’J IR B T
is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances BRI AT BN ERBET X EEZ T E
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. iﬁﬁﬁ i,ﬁfﬂzpﬂiﬁ#%

(i)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) FEBBREERE

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) BRI ETEZEEEE
The loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected BEEENTHeESENRFEHEER
credit losses (ECLs), which are those losses that are expected to occur B EKRES EEZ—E%E%EE@ N FaETE
over the expected life of the trade receivables and amounts due from B BEBEZGEE R—EAREEH
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and related companies (trade- EFEEERERE Hjm%’é%%ﬁ” WIRE
related). The loss allowance is estimated based on the Group’s historical BEHABERXELFE - RRRE B
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors AT R TER — AR A AR o
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@

(i) cCredit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (i) FEEFEREERE )

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (Continued) (i) BT ATEZEERE (B)
ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date with any changes recognised EHEEEEESRRESBHENTE T
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an MEEHEBRRPER - NEBMEREE
impairment gain or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying Bz HRBEEREBEREEKES A
amount of trade receivables and amounts due from holding companies, fhpE W SR IB B ER EE/EH AR FE TR o
fellow subsidiaries and related companies (trade-related) through a loss
allowance account.
The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or other receivable is written EUE ZIRSEMERRNREAREELE
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect U AT BE YIS T FIAGTSS (BFH 2 8) -
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the EEN-—MBEEEBEANRB A ELE MR
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate ERNEBEFHSEENEESWARIR
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

(ii)  Impairment of other assets (i) HoEERE
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of REREERSRTABRINEER - LAE

each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

— Property, plant and equipment;
— Investment properties;
— Intangible assets; and

— Investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®
(i)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (i) FEBFBEREERE (8
(ii)  Impairment of other assets (Continued) (iiy HeEERE &)
— Reversals of impairment losses - B ER(E RS
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable A ABET AT Bl £ 58 2 (AT B IR T
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable & o B O R E RIS o
amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying BE 2B EBEERNATFEL
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss AERHEEEME 2 EEZER
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses B o BB 2 BEREE TR ERER 2
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are FEFTAERF o
recognised.
() Inventories B =®E
Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course of FERKEEBEEKBREPEEFENE
business, in the process of production for such sale or in the form of EREZFESEBRREPHFRASL U
materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the REAE BRI IR LIRS BB E
rendering of services. SHFEM ©
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. FETIRA A A B IDEERE 2 K&
& -
Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises BARAINFEFE AR AL E - WEEMAR
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in B ~ IITRA K 1517 & = B3R B b B B
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. AU A 2 EAB AR o
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of PR EAR BER G E BRI AT T
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs BAR AN M AR ETH S E A o
necessary to make the sale.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is RHEEFER  ZEFE2FEERES®ER
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is U= BRI SIER S o
recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and GEMRENBRFEZEBEMMETEE
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the BB sk E B B FER X - BRI & IR
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down SFEEINMBE LT FERESHHE
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories B 8 4 EAR P RE SRR ST I o
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
(k)  Trade and other receivables (k) FEWRESRIELAERE
A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to FE UL BRTE 7T AN 62 B A S (S R (B 2 HE T
receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is unconditional if R c MBEELNZEBRMHZAIREE
only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration R —ERIERY 0 BIEEAB AR 2 &R
is due. B e
Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest EWREEB TR EREEEEIE R
method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(i)()). & IREERAEAR (REEE100) ©
() Interest-bearing borrowings h MHEEXR
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less WEEXZVIZARBERRZEBRER -
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing NER% - W EEZFEEATR R A
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest SRR ATIE o R ERE IEEAERNEE
method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's RASETBERER (RHFE1WD) »
accountings policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(t)).
I
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®

(m) Trade and other payables (m) EFESZSREMNKIE
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and JERE 5 REMRBBEVIZANBERER
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting HI2 B SEp ARBI B - EIHBEIREE R
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. A AERARSI(E -

(n) cash and cash equivalents (n) RERZERRLEE
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand BehERESBERERTERF Re R
deposits with banks and other financial institutions and short-term, highly 17 N2 E A B A5 1 2 U B AR e R HA R
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of SZRE  MZERERER ] H KD A8
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, RecHABRSA2ERK  WABAKL=S
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash EARNIEZ1REIBE - RELKFERB LA
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL") in accordance B BT EE 10)0) Fr R aHE TERHE EEE -
with the policy set out in note 1()().

(0) Employee benefits (o) EEEF

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) EHEEENREEMER
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined BRFTEZHFES  FRIEA - BEHFF
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are R~ EREFEWRETE 2 HR R AEEFE
accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by > IEERFIINAEE REEIZHEBAR
employees. B2 ERRE -

(i)  Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (i) TEEEFERAREEIZEIE

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
the present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Group,
the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

Service cost and net interest expense or income on the net defined
benefit liability or asset are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by
function as part of “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses”
or "administrative expenses”. Current service cost is measured as the
increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period. When the benefits of a plan
are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changed
benefit related to past service by employees, or the gain or loss on
curtailment, is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and when related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised. Net interest
expense or income for the period is determined by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning
of the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Group's obligations.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

1 Ssignificant accounting policies (Continued) 1. EEEBER (@

(0) Employee benefits (Continued) (o) EEEF &)

(iii)  Termination benefits (Continued) (iii) AKRIEERERN (&)
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group can LILRBEERNAS ANEEREE LEAAIR
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises HNETHERAEAMABRIEL MR IEHE
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits. FrfER (AR aE RUE) o

(p) Income tax (p) FREH
Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred AEEZFSHBEEAPREMELEHREE
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax ENBEZES) AN BNRELEHRIBEEE
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent FEBEZEEBOEERTRER  EEFER
that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or HEmhemlaskEERERTERNIER -
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised Bl 5> BITE Eofth 2 T Yt o ol b 2 TR o
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the ANERFI B TUARIE A EEFEE R A - AR
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the EHEAMTTERIARBGI E 2R E 2B
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous FERTHIE  WBTEE 2 ENBREBEELTE
years. (O
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable BEEMIBEEERBEDAKRBEEREE
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the BERMBHRERAZGREREREMES
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes ZA R ERR R s AR o REHREE
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses EMAAEABSBZHEERB M EAEAZ
and unused tax credits. UG e T A o
Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all BEFERZAIIMER  FAIEELERIBEAE
deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable FIEERIBEE (WEEATEARIEER
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are WIERFE A E BR) e FLAMER - 88
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of AR E S EmEAL 2 IEERIE
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include BEARERF ST - £IEEELDIRAGRE
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary BT EEmMELE A M ERE5
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation Mz E AR — RS E AR ERTE
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either BEARM  WIEHNTEEAE O Al R T E
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary %8 oy njEL s A EIEENIBEEMELEY
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax MIEEE R —HEARELD - RETIREE
asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when R EREN A Y R RE AR IEEE
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the Rk FTEA I EERIBEER T EAMER
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and AR - iz & Z R R — AR MR R E
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to AMERAR  WIEHARSAKIEEENK
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected ez FEHARM (—BsZE) mige - Ble
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be FLAETA
utilised.
The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities BREERBEERBEZ DEHIINEGR -
are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible AENEEEATAIFEMRIE - RRUER
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect WHREZEe:t REXRM AN EERERE
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a (MW IEEBEG M) EEZER=
business combination) and temporary differences relating to investments EEHE MERNBARIZIREER 2 EH
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, R BIERBIEREM 5 A7 E B 0] 1568
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the B - KRR RAGRE A e =5 A
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the case of IR+ Skt A bR Z &M 5 AIIZE DA AT BE R R 2R
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the & E AR o
future.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®
(p) Income tax (Continued) (p) FIBH (&)
The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the BEMIBE RSB VIREENBEZER
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of B2EBERAEMER RARGEEER
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted FIERAM LA E 2R E o EIEHIBA
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ERBET AR -
not discounted.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of REMIBEEZ RREDRSEE RETE
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer B MmidETBREEA B 5 2 ERF % F A
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related HIFEBEHRIESZ - AEERBEEES T
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that LA A o Z BB &R0 16 B A ME R Bl R T
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available. Bl e IR o
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, REARGEE SR EMMEZBEE 5 R
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax o WEAATEE o REBAFREMEHEE
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets REERN B ANEB A AT THEREAKNE]
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally SR EEREAPMEHaE  YAKAS
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities AT I R1ER T - A AT A B SR
and the following additional conditions are met: HFEEFTS IR ALE -
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the — AEHFSEHEEMARE « ARFIHA
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset SEF BRI FREEELE - RASE
and settle the liability simultaneously; or RZBEMEEZEE &
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to — TSR EEMBE  ELEEM
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: BENBER S ER A T E D
— B RIFTIS T A -
— the same taxable entity; or - B —FERTAALIE - ok
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in — TRMERTAEE - L E
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or B EIETA A KRBIEERT
assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to SHAaBHEBENELR
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax 1581 & B AT LA Bl A9 313 R
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously. REAR - IRFEEEETERA
RS E EMBEARNEFT
SHAaE  KFAFFEZE
EMBEZEE -
(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities (q) BERIREE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®

()  Revenue and other income (N WARHfMKES
Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale RAEBNHEEKBREFR  AEBKESY
of goods or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the EERIEMALRAEFXNFRAEENE
ordinary course of the Group’s business. EFEENNE - UBREREA -
Revenue is recognised when control over a product is transferred to the EEMOIZEHEERTRES AR AGRE
customer, or the lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount of FHZEER  KRBRAEEERFEESH
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled, EAEHESTEERRA TEERRE=ZF
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue WENH & 58 « WA TBIRIEERIEET -
excludes value added tax and consumption tax and is after deduction of WHIRRERIE S0 -
any trade discounts.
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income recognition BEAREERAREMKEERBRE—F
policies are as follows: EE2 R/ (U

(i) Sale of goods (i) HEWA
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’ SHEWAFEARHE NS TR E kS
premises or picked up by customers for domestic sales and when goods B EIG e iR £ AEEMS Y
are on board vessels for export sales which is taken to be the point in time REREHER  BEZESERTEER
when the customer has accepted the goods and obtained the control of B A hIfE o
the goods.

(ii)  Interest income (i) FEWA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest FEU AT IE BB & SEETE o
method.

(ili)  Rental income from operating leases (i) RKEHEMEKZESKA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit BIFLEHEMEKR 2 BSIWA - TIAERE
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. RELHTHRE 2 25T BRER - REHEER
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part BE I EARMMM B FHEREN —I6
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. MIEBERPIER °

(ivy Governments grants (iv) BUSHED
Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial position HAEABREARNEE S AT UNEGGZIRF B
initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and VA Ko s 38 <7 U BY 3% 16 B 2 B A 6 - BIRZ A
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants RIS ETBARDRTFER - WELREE
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as SHEBTRmE)  BIERE S A R
income in profit or 10ss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which B ER A -
the expenses are incurred.

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (s) HpEEHB

(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) heEEEREZHREY
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s AREFBEWB AT ZHBREABEEZE
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic B DIRZWNBATKEMTE X EEBER
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The B2 EE ([ E ) 5t2 - SREMBHRE
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, PUEBITTEE] » METAKNATZIEERZEHR
which is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency. B o

[ ]
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1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEEE®

(s) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued) (s) IMEHBR (E)

(ii)  Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign (i)  FRAINEETZ RS - HIAKZ 5 B 2 HMNE
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and fERME - LIMBHEH EBEERBE
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign BIASEE B ZNEIERME o [E H 185 JhaT
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains AdBz5r o
and losses are recognised in profit or 10ss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of ASNE IR R B AN EHERIFEE R EER AR
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign AR5 B HINETE 5 REITITHE o

exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong BEBIINEBREEDNIRERZ 5 B EERE
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign EHERBE SBE - ISR KRAIER L
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of EHANEXBELSEE - EANENLE
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing REE R ERE 0 AR o

foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting

exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount EHEEBUAINERR - HZEEEREmE
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified from RABF S EEEN ETE Y e tER
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised. 5| B BRI EE o

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that BEIBEEEMIINEEYN B (HABERAE
in substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside BLAIMREE R — 20 n) ERRRE 2 TRIBER A
Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on PR E I DLW RIBE B AR B g -
consolidation.

(t) Borrowing costs (t) BERK
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, FWEE - 2 ESEREE (BINER
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a A—BERFEAAFAERERAGIEEZE
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are E) MEEREEZEERAYBIEZSEE
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are ZEMD AR o EAthfE B AN E A R HA TS
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. HIWERS ©

(u) Related parties (u) BEAL

(M

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the
Group if that person:

(1 has control or joint control over the Group;
2) has significant influence over the Group; or

) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group or
the Group's parent.

0]

ERIAL  KEERRBHOKERRREAR
SEBEAL - WEZBENAL

m Eb| s KRR HIA R E
) UAREBERERTESN X

@) REEBSIAEETRAE
BRBZ—-
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1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEEEE®
(u) Related parties (Continued) (uy BEAL®
(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies: (i) —(EAEBATE M TGS - AR AER
AEEBEAL
©) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which (1) ZERBNASBEER—5E E’JﬁJZ %l
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related (EERESHE AR WBA
to the others). B RME AR EMEERN) -
) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or ) *flgﬁi‘f%% ERBOBEAR%E
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the E (F—AERAE %8 IEJZ g
other entity is a member). E’J BanmlkaBdrE mME—EE
REA—SEZKE) -
©) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. €) MEERERAZE=ZTHNEEDLE -
%) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is (%) —RBEEEF—ETENEEDLE
an associate of the third entity. ME—EEEAE=([AEENEHZEA
Ej °
(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of (5) ZERIERE T ASEESBEAEE
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group. FEEALNERNESHREZER
FTEl -
®) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified (6) ZEREX () Prigs A LiEdlsk
in (. Rz o
) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence over the entity 7) NETIEMER A LTHZEER
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or Kﬁ’ijﬂzz\%m B (azEes
of a parent of the entity). NaE) TEEBAEKEZ— -
(8) The entity or any member of a group of which it is a part provides 8) MAEENAEBTAGIREFEE
key management personnel services to the Group or to the KBRSz ERSEMBEBRZT
Group's parent. Al B A A
Close members of the family of a person are those family members who FERATHEZREBKE JVIEXHEBKER
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their ERFREE X SN A RE L A SR A RBA S ©
dealings with the entity.
(v) Segment reporting (v) S2BEREW
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported KES BRI FRERAZRNZTHEIER
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information CHETHEHTARBESTHERAR
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for RE RO MR EE R ES MR EEFT
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, D E o BN ENRENTHEER &
the Group’s various geographical locations. AR o
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial MU BE2MME - BRIED EBEFHEUURLE
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic BEUMEERMRGSHEE EETHFMHE -
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products HREBEASER - BIED RE BB HEARES
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of WA EREBRENEE FEAL - TRIF
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide EEAKED LIS ETEE - HRIZEEKX
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating MEEDE  IMRFE LMK HIZE - B
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they AHEITEE
share a majority of these criteria.
[
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2 Key accounting judgements and estimates 2 EEEHERAIER
Impairment of non-current assets ERBEEZRE
The Group reviews the carrying amounts of non-current assets at each REBREHREHR Hﬁ*ﬁ;ﬂm&béﬁ?é’]@ﬁﬁ
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of B URESEFERENTEBRERE - 28
impairment. When indicators of impairment is identified, management ERZHEE  SEEBRES Qé%a’rﬂﬁz
determines the recoverable amounts of respective assets. The recoverable O&% - Al EAFHEERFERER
amount is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value Fﬁ%ﬁ’]?ﬁ‘m% REEFLEER  B1EE
in use. In determining the fair value less costs of disposal, management SLEREEENIERTEGER WNET
refer to the observable market prices for similar assets. In determining the ﬁﬁm B BFEREEEANTERRIRS R
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted FAREIRE o WIS R EUWATER & &
to their present value, which requires significant judgement relating to WRITN - BB A - [E TFE AN N A% K i iR B
the revenue forecasts and estimations of future discounts, future variable EHIMEMSEAGHE - AEFERREANH
costs and fixed costs as well as future inflation and long-term growth BRIAEETRESENSEME - 2Tk
rates. The Group uses all readily available information in determining an Bl £ EEKNERER - ,mﬁ;gﬂaﬁwa e
amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount. e SR Eiﬁﬁﬂ.éfaﬁrﬁtﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁfﬁ‘“
When the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount, an Tﬂ‘ﬁ?@)ﬁ%ijjuﬁ,m%mﬁféﬁﬁgﬁ; %7
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. However, any change in EAREENIFBAR - IEREEED Ii{féf%ﬂ
the assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would increase or BREAEFE DRI 11 R12F#HE -
decrease the provision for impairment loss and affect the Group’s financial
position. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of non-current assets
are disclosed in notes 11 and 12.

3  Revenue and segment reporting 3 WARSEEHER

(@) Revenue (@ WA
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution REBZ X EXEBARER D HBE  BEE
of bottled, canned and draught beers. K AREE IR o
Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of discounts, WA FEFT B E S 2 B @EMBRIT
returns, value added tax and consumption tax. [ - EEH LM
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS HRAEECHEWAERE B SREE
15 to revenue such that the information does not include information AIE1SEE 1N B 2BERERE R E - Bt £
about revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the BRI TR EABWASEBERIEREHF
remaining performance obligations under the contracts that had an HA—FHATERFBRBEOBEEE R
original expected duration of one year or less. B2 A ZERL o

(b) Segment reporting (b) DHFERZH
The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent & lw@E BEER REANFZ®RE
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s MEAEESESETHEEABUNESEE
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource TR RS R ‘f?ﬁﬁ( HoAREBZD2H Y
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the MEET 2RO EE -

following two reportable segments:

— The Hong Kong operations mainly comprise the manufacture
and distribution of own brewed beer products and distribution of
imported beer products in Hong Kong and overseas.

— The Mainland China operations mainly comprise the manufacture
and distribution of own brewed beer products in the southern part
of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") and overseas.

All of the Group's revenue is generated from the manufacture and
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers.

- BREBIBRERAETE BN H
BOBE Y EHEMRNDHED 22
BEEm

- TREAMEFEIZBRETEARK
B (THE ) At BN D IR &
PRS2 AR ©

AEBEZWAZRRERIER DB - #
KPR o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued 3 WARDEEHEEHR &)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (by SHERER (&

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) PEEE  BERERE
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating HFEBEDIBERIREDESHER » KEEZ
resources between segments, the Group's senior executive management HFT‘IBZE@AE\E&U\T% WEERRZAT
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable WoSEMLZEE  BENBE
segment on the following bases:
Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and current DEEEREFEEREE BEFEENR
assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals attributable HEE - D BEBRESHRIERDIE
to the manufacture and distribution activities of the individual segments BEENEMNESEELIRER 95y
and retirement benefit liabilities managed directly by the segment and BEEENRRENABEAREMRESEE
other current liabilities with the exception of deferred tax liabilities. MERER B A ERIN o
The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is “adjusted HEETERENSKEBEBMERZAZER
EBIT” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest and taxes”, where “interest” fuﬂ%%z SRATALE ] BN [ B B1&F 2 RBiE
is regarded as including interest income from bank deposits and interest H\JZ?H,FM ﬂ S B LRI TIE R B YA K A
expense on loan from an intermediate holding company. To arrive NHERL R EX - JERAHERIR AR
at adjusted EBIT the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items ’\*BE’]IEE ZZDER/?ESJ‘% AR EEE
not specifically attributed to individual segments, such as net foreign [ABEFAIFE] - DEBZEEHEEZ A
exchange losses. Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus a profit A DR EIEEE -
margin.
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the ;E% &;3 e .frBz R AR 5F 1 BTl 2 A
Group’s accounting policies described in note 1. B FER
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued 3 WARSESEIEHER (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SHERZR (B
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) DEPEE - EERAE (&)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the He T ZFR T F+-_A=+—
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resource Hif  BARETAEESZSETREEA
allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years ended BUSRER R ED HRB 2 ERFHT 0
31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out below: N
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB PERt B
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBCEE “E-NE ZBCIEE “E-NE b 22 “E-NE
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i r 7 i 7
Revenue from external MREPYA
customers 365,924 384,663 189,734 195,387 555,658 580,050
Inter-segment revenue AEEBA 179 327 - — 179 327
Reportable AFEHIBRA
segment revenue 366,103 384,990 189,734 195,387 555,837 580,377
Reportable segment ATERIPLE
profit/(loss) BH/ (BB
from operations (EHREBA
(adjusted EBIT) SHIEA) 14,176 (1,989 797 7,780 14,973 5791
Interest income from BATEARMBHA
bank deposits 621 1,252 566 325 1,187 1,577
Interest expense on loans BEFEEY (2,238) (4,303) - — (2,238) (4,303)
Depreciation and FREREH
amortisation for the year (20,733) (20,270) (2,423) (3301) (23,156) (24,07)
(Provision for)/reversal BHREMERE
of impairment losses (RifEEHE
of trade and Bi&) /HE
other receivables BEAD (1,085) (1) (5) 5 (1,090) 4
Reportable BATERIVEE
segment assets 995,898 997,973 129,577 117,848 1,125,475 1,115,821
Additions to non-current FRIERE S H
segment assets during BEEM
the year 7,195 7.275 6,492 3532 13,687 10,807
Reportable segment BFERAPEE
liabilities 145,931 170,940 436,533 428,967 582,464 599,907
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BIEREEHE)

(b)
(i)

88

Revenue and segment reporting (Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

BARSBEFZ® (&)
PBERLR (8

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, BAFERIBUA - B - BEREEZ
assets and liabilities ¥R
2020 2019
—E-BF ZE-NF
$'000 $'000
F T Tt
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue AT 23D WA 555,837 580,377
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 8B U AR (179) (327)
Consolidated revenue ERE WA 555,658 580,050
Profit &F|
Reportable segment profit from operations AT 2D HpreE B 14,973 5,791
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZFBUA 1,187 1,577
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains % (F8) Mz (1,360) 282
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGERNEXH (15) 37)
Interest expense on loans from related companies  Ea:E A 7l B3 &2 (2,238) (4,303)
Consolidated profit before taxation SEBT AT 12,547 3,310
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets HATEBRDEBEE 1,125,475 1,115,821
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 7 8B B FE W AR TE R 8R (381,731) (383,767)
Consolidated total assets CEMEEE 743,744 732,054
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities AT E2HHEEE 582,464 599,907
Elimination of inter-segment payables 280 R FE S BR IR HEH (381,731) (383,767)
Consolidated total liabilities REBEAE 200,733 216,140
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3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued 3 WARSESEIEHER (&)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SDBERZW HE)
(ili)  Geographic information (i) HEER
The following table sets out information about the geographic location of TEHEB () AEBEIINERZE KA (i) 4
(i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the Group’s non- EEIERBEE ([EBETIERBEE]) it
current assets (“specified non-current assets”). The geographic location BUBER BEZWEBEMNEREESLE
of customers is based on the country of establishment of each customer. PR MEFTERKRME c 5EEIERBEE
The geographic location of the specified non current assets is based BN EEREEEZERMNE (HEY
on the physical location of the assets, in the case of property, plant and ¥ BRNERE REMEREE I MER)
equipment and investment properties and the location of the operation to LEIBREHEEE2EEME (MBEFE
which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets. E)ME °
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
PREFWA EEHRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF —ECEF —E-hF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F T Ft Tt
Hong Kong &
(place of domicile) (RRIZHBEE) 251,223 267,792 434,622 448158
Mainland China R B (A 83,602 93,693 35,440 30,990
Philippines JEEE 212,511 210,663 — —
Others H AR 8,322 7,902 — —
304,435 312,258 35,440 30,990
555,658 580,050 470,062 479,148
(c) Major customers (c) FEXEF
The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes one customer REBHEBZ L BEREAR - HpEE—
(2019: one customer), with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of (Z2—NF  —f) BEPHRSEEERA
the Group's revenues. Revenue from sales to these customers during the HiB10% o L N RZEEPIRAFEERARE
report period are set out as below. BHRZ 5256 °
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Largest customer (arose from both Hong Kong R HRREF
and the Mainland China segments) OBRRAES KA B A5 E6) 212,732 210,749
— Percentage of total revenue — HEEBABRL 38% 36%
Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are set MAZEEPZHAMEERBEH LM
out in note 24(a). 24(a) »
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

4  oOther netincome 4 HaSPEH
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
$'000 $'000
F T Tt
Rental income from investment properties FEMENE WA 24,517 23,706
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZFILEHA 1,187 1,577
Net gain on disposal of non-current assets HEIETRHNEE 2 ERF 899 913
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains PE N R (E518) /WS (1,360) 282
Government subsidies (note) BSREE) (k) 15,109 —
Others Hith 370 494
40,722 26,972
Note: In 2020, the Group successfully applied for funding support from the g RIZZZEF  AEBRBBBUTRILD
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the R EESH [RIE] &8P
Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial EER - ZEPMBENEADERMYE
support to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be XE URBAIEEWERNIES - BE
made redundant. Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to BN & AMERR - ANE B E SR AL BARE
make redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding TMEHE WHEAEEBARENETIT
on paying wages to the employees. Ao
5 Profit before taxation 5 RREEHN
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREABAENR 7 (5tA) T5E
(crediting): B :
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
FT T
(a) Finance costs (a) Bi%E H
Interest expense on loans from related EZENG)
companies (note 17(c)) BB (FFE17(c) 2,238 4,303
Interest on lease liabilities (note 17(c)) HEBBEMN ST (BiFE170) 15 37
Bank charges RITEHA 120 138
2,373 4,478
(b)  Staff costs (b) B T 5
Retirement costs RIS KA
— Defined contribution retirement plans — ERRHFURARETE 4,130 6,199
— Defined benefit retirement plan — ERERAEMARETE
(note 20(a)(v)) (B E 20(a)(v)) 4,681 5,263
8,811 11,462
Severance payment (note 13(ii)) EEE (BTEE13ii) 10,894 —
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMETR 121,179 122,952
140,884 134,414
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(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHE)

5 Profit before taxation (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

5 FRIREIRF (&)

BRELBIBFEMER 7 (RTA) T5IE

(crediting): (Continued) g : @)
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
T T
(c) Other items Hihg g
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment (note 11(a)) — W% - HESRERE
(KdsE11(a)) 18,425 19,332
— Investment properties (note 11(a)) — &EME (MEE11@) 4,731 4,739
Cost of inventories (note 14) FERA (FE14) 309,672 318,340
Expense relating to short-term leases and SEVEN PSRN
other leases with remaining lease term —E-NF+=ZA=+—8
ending on or before 31 December 2019 AISEAE AR E MR SE
(note 17(d)) (FF&E17(d)) 801 830
Rental receivable from investment properties WEMEZ S WATBREE
less direct outgoings of $7,922,000 £ 37,922,000 7C
(2019: $7,860,000) (ZZE— L% : 7,860,000 7T) (16,595) (15,846)
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET N 2 3,301 3,306
Net provision for/(reversal of) impairment of JEWE 5 R HMBRFR 2
trade and other receivables (note 24(a)) RER S, ([E15)
(B3 24(a)) 1,090 (4)
[
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6 Income tax in the consolidated income 6 FREKBRZMER
statement
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (@) HZAEWBRZFBHIE:
represents:
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
$'000 $'000
T T
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax REFE — FEREH
Provision for the year N E A — 601
Over-provision in prior year T FEmEREE (20) (20)
e o1 |
Deferred tax (note 21) EEHE (MieE21)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences i@ zHBipEE 00 (284 G571
Income tax credit RS ®iaT A (1,304) (4,990)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax in 2020 has been made for the
Group because the accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed the
estimated assessable profits for the year. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for 2019 was calculated at 8.25% for the first $2 million of
assessable profits and the remaining assessable profits were taxed at
16.5%.

The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") was 25% (2019: 25%). No provision for
current taxation has been made for the subsidiaries established in the
PRC because the accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed the
estimated assessable profits for the year or the entities sustained losses
for taxation purposes.

Atk el AT R BB S BB A R A
SEGRBLRF - MUANE S 5 B RIS B
P - — T NEEBHERBBRER
fib 5t AR SR BRI IR B — BB TR 8.25%
g%@ﬁvﬁ%@ﬁmﬂﬁﬁm5%mﬁ$
B -

TAFR BIRCIZ RO B B A B ETE B R 43 25% (—
T— N5 1 25%) ° AP BRI EHE A RIA
WA E g R BRI E BB A F A ER
MENHESHBEE - WA B AFER
RfER B -

(b) Reconciliation between income tax credit and (b) EEBABRFENMEHITAESS
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: B ZHER
2020 2019
—E-EF ZENF
$'000 $'000
T T
Profit before taxation MR F Al 2 A 12,547 3,310
Notional tax on profit before taxation REBRIER AR E A X
calculated at the rates applicable PRI RI & FFTE
to the tax jurisdictions concerned ZAhETHIR 1,984 398
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAIHBRHES 2 FHIETE 1,576 2,094
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERRMA Z FHIEZ & (2,616) (208)
Tax effect of contributions to retirement benefit plans :RiKEFIEHEI (2 > FiTE e 2 420 355
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised for AERIELERIE 2 FiIBE1E
deferred tax purposes 7,150 2,927
Tax effect of previously unrecognised tax losses AEEFARERTBEE
utilised this year ZBEE (4,692) (5,571)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised  RERELFIENEREE=E
for deferred tax purposes ZBEE (5,106) (4,965)
Qver-provision in prior years FEEBREERE (20) (20)
Actual tax credit BERHIERT A (1,304) (4,990)
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
7 Directors’ emoluments 7 EE#e
Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong RIEE SN BEME 383(1) 16 % A7) (3
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of BEEFZER) RO F 222 R EMH
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows: BoESEMeWT -
2020
“ECER
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e BER
EEHS BYRE; MERL  BARGEHEK et
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T T T T
Executive director HTES
Ramon G. Torralba HER — 2,745 - — 2,745
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang Y - - - - -
Carlos Antonio M. Berba FED - - — — -
May (Michelle) W. M, Chan BREX - - - - -
Roberto N. Huang =2ER — — — — —
Fumiaki Ozawa INEF R - - - — —
Kenji Uchiyama ALE= — - — — —
Tomoki Yamauchi IR 1B — - - - -
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta - - — - -
David K.P. Li TEHE - — — — —
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno - - - - -
Carmelo L. Santiago ik 3] - - - — —
SumLi S
(appointed on 1 September 20200  (R=Z=Z4F
NLA—BEZA) - — — - -
William C. M. Cheng BAIR
(resigned on 1 September 2020) (R=Z-ZE
NA—BE(E) — — — — —
— 2,745 - — 2,745
[ ]
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
7 Directors’ emoluments (Continued) 7 EFEMe (&
2019
—E-NEF
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses contributions Total
e 2K
EEvirn =) BEEA  RIKGEIER k)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T FIr Tt
Executive director HITES
Ramon G. Torralba MR — 2,773 — — 2,773
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang BRI — — — — _
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SR = = = = =
May (Michelle) W. M, Chan BREX — - - - -
Roberto N. Huang =2ER — = — _ _
Fumiaki Ozawa INEF R _ _ _ . .
Kenji Uchiyama M= — — — — _
Tomoki Yamauchi WP - — — _ _
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive directors
Alonzo Q. Ancheta Alonzo Q. Ancheta = = — — -
David K.P Li FEE — — — — —
Reynato S. Puno Reynato S. Puno = — — — —
Carmelo L. Santiago i3] — — — — —
William C. M. Cheng AR — — — _ _
— 2,773 — — 2,773
The executive director waived his entitlement to his director’s fees. All %ﬂﬁ%?e?g%ﬁ%@@;ﬁﬁﬁ#%ﬂﬁ%%
of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors MBS IERITEFENEEMBEMNSE -
waived their entitlements to all their emoluments.
[
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)
8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 MesEZAR

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2019: one) is a
director whose emoluments are included in note 7. The aggregate of the

BRRFABAET  —B (ZT-NF: —

SERME7RE) - &

[l
emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2019: four) individuals are as H(ZE—NF R HesgmzABZ
follows: B 4@%ENT
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
Fi FIT
Salaries and other emoluments e MoERL 7,699 7,493
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIH R 459 454
8,158 7,947
The emoluments of the four (2019: four) individuals with the highest & (ZZ—hF : 04 legaszAEZ
emoluments are within the following bands: eoHraT
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NEF
Number of Number of
individuals Individuals
AEZE ANEZE
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 2
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 7t 2 2,500,000 7T 2 2
[
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

9

10
(a)

(b)

96

Other comprehensive income 9 Hti2Emk&
Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income Hit 2 s g o fiEr 2
2020 2019
a3 —T-nF
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax  Before-tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount effect  amount amount effect amount
BHAISE BEYE KRBELE RiNeE BEYE RigeE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tr Tr T T T
(note 21(h)) (note 21(h))
(KizE21(b)) (HI5E21(0)
Exchange differences on AMEEINTEA
translation of financial Bﬁ“%i&i%&l?ﬁ ,ZHEXEI
statements of subsidiaries REBARZEANEEER
outside Hong Kong and monetary — FIEA 2 EH =5
items that form part of the
net investment in subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong 4,203 - 4,203 (1,225) — (1,225)
Actuarial gains and losses of ERRMRAE
defined benefit retirement plan ZIEEBFIREE
(note 20(a)(v)) (B &E 20a)(v)) 10,327 (1,284) 9,043 9,457 (1,205) 8,252
Other comprehensive income Hiv2ENa 14,530 (1,284) 13,246 8,232 (1,205) 7,027
Earnings per share 10 SBEEA
Basic earnings per share (@ BRELXER
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit EREABANDIREAAAEZES
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of profit of $17,228,000 A FE (5 & F| $£17,228000 ( =& — N
(2019: $11,583,000) and on 373,570,560 (2019: 373,570,560) ordinary % :11,5830007T) R AFERNB T
shares, being the number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year. 2 373,570,560 Hﬁ TEKR(ZT—F:
373,570,560 f% & Hx) FTE o
Diluted earnings per share (by #WEBECEREF

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as the Company did not have
dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years presented.

BE 2 SRANILRTIH - AARBLR
BRAEEUENEE L BRFHE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE
11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 P BRREHE REVERA
properties and leasehold land g1t
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (@) REEBEHK
Property, plant and equipment
0E BEREE
Ownership
interests in
land and

buildings ~ Machinery,
held for  equipment,

own use furniture Motor  Construction Investment
carried at cost  and fixtures vehicles in progress Sub-total properties Total
BAMSE
fLi MR RE-
REE GRREE B ERIR &t RENE @
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
i i A i AR 7 i

Cost: A :
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE-NF-A—-H 1,019,291 1,647,735 4,964 6,283 26782718 212,714 2,890,992
Exchange adjustments R RE (9.959) (14,685) (64) - (24,708) — (24,708)
Additions e 168 7815 550 1419 9,952 855 10,807
Transfer from construction in progress EREERTR 257 5975 56 (6,288) — — —
Disposals HE — (11,733) (1,245) — (12,978) — (12,978)
AL Decemoer2019 REBNETZASTCA 00977 107 Al M9 as0M 21359 284N
Accumulated amortisation, ZiHEs  ERAESE:

depreciation and

impairment losses:
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A—H 726,141 1,583,827 410 - 2,314,109 87,217 2,401,326
Exchange adjustments BiRE (9.411) (14,525) (60) — (23,996) — (23,996)
Charge for the year (note 5(c)) ERR (FEE5(0) 13,188 5897 247 — 19,332 4739 24,07
Written back on disposals HERE — (10,420) (1,245) — (11,665) — (11,665)
AT December2019 . REBAVEICASTCR L 098 ISR 3088 . T N6 2376
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December 2019 R=E-NE+-A=1—H 279,839 70,328 1178 1419 352,764 121,613 474,371
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2020 RZE-ZF4-f—-H 1,009,757 1,635,107 4,261 1,419 2,650,544 213,569 2,864,113
Exchange adjustments & 5 3% 29,049 42,425 167 2 71,643 - 71,643
Additions 975 4,373 163 8,176 13,687 - 13,687
Transfer from construction in progress m 4,755 1.291 (6,157) - - -
Disposals (75) (12,119) (35) - (12,229) - (12,229)
MgDeembera)  RCECERICASICA 109817 LTS SHT____3MO_ IBeN5 205 29921
Accumulated amortisation, ZiHEs  ERAESA:

depreciation and

impairment losses:
At 1 January 2020 R=E-F5-f—-H 729,918 1,564,779 3,083 - 2,297,780 91,956 2,389,736
Exchange adjustments B A 27,514 41,999 157 - 69,670 - 69,670
Charge for the year (note 5(c)) FRRAR (HFE5(C) 11,648 6,219 558 - 18,425 4731 23,156
Written back on disposals HEER - (10,604) (35) - (10,639) - (10,639)
MgDecember ) ACRSERLCASIOR e 1w ue T ey 2419B
Net book value: REEE
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-FE+-A=1—H 270,737 72,148 2,084 3,440 348,409 116,882 465,291
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)

11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 1 P BRREHE KREIVERA
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 (&)

(b) Investment properties (b) ®EWYE

The Group leases out investment properties which are located at Nos. AEBRELLEHESUNE S HKEK

9-11 Shing Wan Road, Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong under operating leases. ERRO-1MR 2 IREY L - MAFH—%

The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with BE=F oEEREIBAKETREY

an option to renew each lease upon expiry at which time all terms are EEEEIRENTE IR - BEALHTE

renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. S ARTES o

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases AEERBETMEEEEHEEm R 2 RK

in place at the reporting date will be receivable by the Group in future AEFEWIT :

periods as follows:

2020 2019

b —T-hF

$'000 $'000

F T Tt

Within 1 year —F R 21,753 17,035

After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 21,669 13,640

43,422 30,675
(c) The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2020is  (€) HEMER-_Z=-_ZF+=-A=+—H
$461,200,000 (2019: $527,400,000). The fair value of investment properties Z A F 8 B461,200,000T ( ZF— N F -
located in Hong Kong is determined on an open market value basis, by 527,400,0007T) - IR BEBREMEHA
either making reference to the comparable sales evidence in the relevant REEREBEARMSEEET - AEUE
locality, or otherwise, by capitalising the net rent income receivable from SEIEEM R AL EMRRZERAFE
the existing tenancies and the reversionary value of properties after R E KRB AL T YE A F A S WA FEL

tenancies expire. FIEAEZ =R FIBREEBERNE

The valuation was carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, LCH ET BB AERTREITAZMARA

(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among their staff Members AT HBERERAIEMEgmE:

of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with valuation experience in the g8 EHEFENMERENEGHE

location and category of the property being valued. 1B o

The fair value measurements are categorised as Level 3 valuations under AREFERBEE ST B RELERE135%

the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value [AREEFE] IERZ=RANEEEE

measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified EHEAE=-AME - BAREBEFENE

is determined with reference to the observability and significance of the ZERIDEBE T RER AT REIR 2 7]

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows: BIRUEREEHRET -

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. - F—RIHE - EERAE—RBASE
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or (BREFERRBEEESBERER
liabilities at the measurement date MG REHABRRE) stEZ A AE

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs - FIREE: FRE-RBASE
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using (BDARBEERFE—F 2 OB Rig AH
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for %) B RFEASAT BRI A
which market data are not available BErEZARE - TAlERE A

AETISEE 2B AR

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - FEoMEE - RAEATIBRER

unobservable inputs EZARE
——
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHE)

11

(c)

Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 P BRREHE REVERA
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 @)
(Continued) (c) (#8)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements F=ZRANREEBER
Valuation Unobservable
techniques input Range
EEHR FABEYE EE
Investment properties Sales comparison approach Premium/(discount) on 0% to 10%
Industrial — Hong Kong quality of the buildings (2019: 0% to 10%)
LAY PR AR L EOE VMEEEFH 0% £ 10%
I¥Rg— 8% B(E, (k) (Z2—NF : 0% Z=10%)
Investment properties Investment method of Discount rates 2.0% t0 4.0%
Industrial — Hong Kong income approach (2019:2.0% t0 4.5%)
TEMHE wE WA AR = 20%ZE4.0%

TRz —&F

The premium or discount on quality of the buildings used in sales
comparison approach is specific to the building compared to the recent
sales. High premium for higher quality buildings will result in a high fair
value measurement.

The discount rates used in investment method of income approach has
been adjusted for the expected market rental growth, occupancy rate
and quality and location of the buildings. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the market rental value and negatively correlated
to the discount rate.

(ZZ—NF : 20%E4.5%)

AL EUEFRE R ET R X EEE &M
BRNREINBX T ECREYRHE - Sm
HRENREERSRRSNARE -

BEWEEPERNRE XD IRBEEMNT
SHEESER - HEARAREEYNHE SN
BETTHE AnERAMSESEEZE
1HRE - AR K2 AR -
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 1 P BRREHE KREIVERA
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 (&)
(d) Right-of-use assets (d) FHEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of FAEEMNRDFE  UEABNEED
underlying asset is as follows: AT
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Note $'000 $'000
B EE T T
Ownership interests in leasehold land ~ FIABEENF+ER T+
and buildings held for own use, UREARNBEAmMEER
carried at depreciated cost in HETHREEFAHE -
Hong Kong, with remaining lease LAB T EE R AT BR
term of between 10 and 50 years (i) 270,737 279,839
Machinery, equipment, furniture s - Bl BRIRREE
and fixtures, carried at LAB T EE R AT BR
depreciated cost (ii) 46 16
270,783 279,855
Ownership interests in leasehold FISHEENT+E=R+4F -
investment property, carried at LAB T ER AT BRAY
depreciated cost, with remaining HEREYEMAE
lease term of between
10 and 50 years 116,882 121,613
387,665 401,468
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11 Property, plant and equipment, investment 11 P BRREHE REVERA
properties and leasehold land (Continued) 1 @)
(d) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (d) FHEEE &
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or BRARERTERHEEESENBEXEE D
loss is as follows: WnTF :
2020 2019
TECEF —ET—hF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ZHEEEE  BRED 2
by class of underlying asset: FRBEEENMESZ D :
Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings #E/EE A2 HE i RigF 2
held for own use, carried at depreciated cost HEERER - RETEXARTER 11,648 13,188
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures s HE  RIANESE 27 150
Ownership interests in leasehold investment THEREYE 2 R E R -
property, carried at depreciated cost REITERATIER 4,731 4,739
16,406 18,077
During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were $57,000 (2019: $Nil). RER - FBEREEERSS7,000(=ZF
This amount related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new —NE | ZeFERBRHEOEMNE
tenancy agreements. HeXHERMLEHER -
Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease ME MR 7 LB BRI S B A HIR 5 AT
liabilities are set out in notes 17(d) and 22, respectively. RIFEAE RS BITENFE 17(d) 22 /51 -
(i)  Ownership interests in leasehold land and buildings held for () FEFERAZEELIHREBTZHERER
own use #®
The Group holds a number of properties for its beers business. The Group AEEBEGEXBHEAEIEYE - XEH
is the registered owner of these property interests, including the share in BEEYEER (RITERE ) MEfisg
the underlying land. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire A REBEXZNT —FRE - DEEAF
these property interests from their previous registered owners. s E NESE L EER -
(i)  Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures (i)  #e25 2E - KRREE

The Group leases machinery under a lease expiring in 5 years. None of the
leases includes variable lease payments.

ARERREHAOANEE - HABOT
BETERENH -
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12 Intangible assets 12 HLRE
Club
Trademarks debentures Total
[5E=d ST EREE Pt
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Cost: RS :
At 1 January 2019, RZZ—-—hF—H—8"
31 December 2019, —E-hF+ZA=+—8"
1 January 2020 and —ETF-A-HRK
31 December 2020 —T-FF+-_A=+—H ne - 4m 43887
Accumulated impairment ZEEHREEE !
losses:
At 1 January 2019, RZZ—-—hF—H—H8 "
31 December 2019, —T-hF+=-—A=+—8"
1 January 2020 and —EZTF-A—HRK
31 December 2020 —T-FF+-_A=+—H e - 39,116
Net book value: BREFE !
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—8K
31 December 2020 —E-TE+-_A=+—H — 4,771 4,771
I
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

13 Investments in subsidiaries 13 MELTESR

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

company:

TREFIRLBIBEMBARIER

Proportion of

Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Company Subsidiary activity
Raiya Ay BRITRES FrERERS
DA BB A i B & A NG B 2 TEER
Hongkong Brewery Hong Kong 100 100% — Dormant
Limited (“"HKBL") ordinary shares
(note () (HH&E ()
i 1001 RS
g il
San Miguel (Guangdong) Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment
Limited class “"A" shares holding
£ (ER) BRAR B 18,000 A% WEER
(A) Bz
1,000 100% =
class “B” shares
1,000 A%
(B) B
Guangzhou San Miguel PRC Registered capital: — 70% Distribution
Brewery Company US$36,507,000 of beer
Limited (“GSMB")
(note (ii)
BN A A R A A AR EEA SHES B
(TR A0 1) CREEE (D) 36,507,000 %75
San Miguel Shunde Holdings Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Limited ordinary shares holding
BB 200,000 B R
R il
San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered capital: — 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company Limited US$87,933,000 and sale of
(“SMGB") (note (iii)) beer
£7 (BR) @BEERAR] A E FEER FERY 1% $H 65 IR
(M= BEER 1) (R & i) 87,933,000 % 7¢
[
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13 Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) 13 MMEBLTRER (&
Notes: PEE -
(i) HKBL has not traded since incorporation but it established a joint venture, (i) HKBL B #Ef A 2 BAZK - — B8 B#1T(E

Global Brews Hong Kong Limited, in Hong Kong on 18 March 2011. HKBL
holds a 50% equity interest in this entity. As at the date of the approval
of these financial statements, the joint venture has not commenced
operations.

(i) As at 29 November 2020, GSMB terminated its operations. The operation
was being transferred to SMGB, another PRC subsidiary of the Group.
The Group put GSMB into voluntary liquidations under the procedures
prescribed under the laws of the PRC. As a result, a one-off severance
payment of $10,894,000 was charged to profit or loss during the year (note
5(b)).

(i) SMGB is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise with an operating period of 50
years expiring on 4 August 2042.

The following table lists out the information relating to SMGB, the only
subsidiary of the Group which has material non-controlling interests
(“NCI"). The summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

(ii)

ARG ARZFE——F=A+NBR
BB T — 4 A Global Brews Hong
Kong Limited (94 & A 7] - HKBLIF A% E
BEOZETRE - HERMBHRERIE
2B ZAEAREHRFIBEES -

GSMBRZZE_ZEF+— A=+ NHBEKIE
BB - ZEBCEREAEERTENS
— KM B A FISMGB » NEE R EE
BRTENEFBGSVMBEITERE®E - 45
B AFEEEBRPNR—SBNERE
10,894,000 7T (FI7E5(D)) ©

E7(BER) BEERABDRSEINEHRE
¥ BEREHPRTE  R-TM_F
A B & o

TREJNEELENRERZER  ENERE

ZINS

B —HAEEAFEREROMBEAL

A NI B AN ERETAARM
IR 2 258
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2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

$'000 $'000

T T

NCI percentage RS T DL 8% 8%
Current assets MENEE 116,754 84,284
Non-current assets ERBEE 37,909 33,730
Current liabilities mEaE (39,905) (27,224)
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE (381,287) (383,100)
Net liabilities BEFE (266,529) (292,310)
Carrying amount of NCI IR i R BRI (B (21,322) (23,385)
Revenue WA 131,055 127,442
Profit for the year FRERF| 43,053 11,755
Total comprehensive income FE2AWEREE 43,053 11,755
Profit allocated to NCI DB EIEEAR S BT 3,444 940
Cash generated from operating activities RIS 7B WA 3,515 11,202
Cash used in investing activities KREERZIRE R (4,259) (1,639)
Cash used in financing activities BB RS 2R ST — 9
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHE)

14

15

Inventories 14 E®
2020 2019
—E-SE —NnEF
$'000 $ 000
Tt T
Products in hand and in process HEEMRERSR 32,449 33,776
Materials and supplies IR R 24,260 17,251
56,709 51,027
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as EHRARAZ s FESEANNOT
follows:
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
$'000 $'000
Tt T+
Carrying amount of inventories sold (note 5(c)) HEFSREE (FFE50) 309,672 318,340
Trade and other receivables 15 BERESIREMIERE
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E—NF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Trade receivables e E SR 32,448 39,642
Less: Loss allowance B IR (763) (271)
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance FEUE 5 8RB E 1R B 31,685 39,371
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HibpEURBR -« 128 RIENIE 11,090 12,028
42,775 51,399

The amount of the deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered
or recognised as expenses after more than one year is $1,150,000 (2019:
$921,000). All of the other trade receivables, other debtors, deposits and
prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
within one year.

The Group held collateral over trade receivables at the end of the reporting

AEEE ZN —FRATROE SRR

iz RANREASE

53 5l 41,150,000 7T

(ZZ—J1%F : 921,0007T) A Hith el

ZERIA N H R -

wE MIBNFOATER

E—FRREEIIEER

FEBEAEAREREZRBFAEUTE

period with attributable values as set out below: D
2020 2019
—ECEHE —E—NnF
$'000 $'000
FT TIT
Buildings ME 7,115 2,031
Cash deposits &7 1,801 1,691

Cash deposits disclosed above are included in the other creditors and
accrued charges and are expected to be settled after more than one year,
as disclosed in note 18.

The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the trade receivables
is mitigated by the collateral in the amounts indicated above. The value
of the buildings collateral represents the estimated market value of the
buildings as at 31 December 2020.

A EFIRER G F I AR K BB Z R
—EFRINWEMRMNRBERERER  ®

Mo 18 4538 -

REER R IR R T RN E SR
HHEERRE - ERYEEERKRYER
ZEZEF+ZA=t+—HME-
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBBHE)
15 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 15 BRESEAMERR (@
Ageing analysis AR O AT
The ageing of trade receivables (net of loss allowance) at the end of the FEWE SEEE (ENBELEE) NEER Y
reporting period is as follows: BREQIAT
2020 2019
—ECEF —NF
$'000 $'000
FT Tt
Current KB EA 24,780 29,709
Less than 1 month past due BEAR LK —EH 5,253 5,829
1to 3 months past due BEARA—Z=2=EA 966 2,106
More than 3 months but less than BEBAZNR=EAZE
12 months past due +—{&A 670 1,360
More than 12 months past due BERZR A 16 367
31,685 39,371
According to the Group’s credit policy set out in note 24(a), the general IR AN B SF AP T 3T 24(a) U E B BUR
credit period is payment by the end of the month following the month BEEHAENIHEEE A Wé”‘ﬂ HFET’F&
in which sales take place. Therefore, all the current balances above are IR o B - LB A ep9 3 = A H
within two months from the invoice date. EMEA A o
16 Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, 16 Bl (FEf) ZEBRATF - ARM
fellow subsidiaries and related companies BATFIRREALFIREA
Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and related BT3B BFEBIRE GG O Bl
companies are unsecured, interest-free and recoverable/repayable (D) ERAT - ARMB AR REEAR]
on demand except for the following trade-related amounts which are BRI BT - R B RIRFE R E, B
recoverable/repayable under normal trade terms:
2020 2019
—ECEE —E—hEF
$'000 $'000
Ft T
Amounts due from holding companies FEUGERR A ]
and fellow subsidiaries B ES NG 16,723 19,152
Amounts due to holding companies FEHZERG A B
and fellow subsidiaries PR ES NG (732) (406)
Amounts due to related companies FE &N BIBRIE (7,084) (5,051)
The trade-related balances were not past due as at 31 December 2020 HEZHB ERR_E_TF RN
and 2019. FHZA=+—RHIKREH -
Related companies included a non-controlling shareholder and companies, FE QR BIEIEE HxHx%&Ei\rﬂT /NG
the ultimate holding company of which has significant influence over the HAEEBEERLER
Group.
——
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(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHE)

17
(a)

(b)

cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 17 BeREERESHFHRBITER
Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits comprise: (a) RERZERLERRBTEREE:
2020 2019
—E_SE —E-NF
$'000 $'000
Fi T
Bank deposits within three months of FREEISHEA=EANA
maturity when placed BYERITIF 3K 65,136 34,101
Cash at banks and on hand RIS FERS 47,203 72,631
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated Z%{:} ﬁﬁ&ﬂk,ﬂi’%
statement of financial position and MizEReRERP
consolidated cash flow statement BIRe RERIESIEE 112,339 106,732
Bank deposits with more than three months to FEs 2 H AiEm=1E A
maturity when placed K)SRITIEEK 43,770 22,661
Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits as at 31 December 2020 RZZBZZTF+A=+—H R EER

include $30,376,000 (2019: $53,342,000) placed with banks in the Mainland
China, the remittance of which is subject to relevant rules and regulations
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

ReHBRBOTEAERFRTEARMBER
730,376,0007C ( — & — J1 £ : 53,342,000
7o) - HIEFRAZ P EBUFED BRI X

SNESEIRFTE I

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BREBARABELEEEIBESRAR
generated from operations: ik :
2020 2019
—ECEE —NF
Note $'000 $ 000
B 5T T Tt
Profit before taxation MRFR T2 A 12,547 3,310
Adjustments for: T EEELAE
Interest income FEUA 4 (1,187) (1,577)
Net gain on disposal BEERB A E S SRF
of non-current assets (899) 913)
Interest expense FEZH 5(a) 2,253 4,340
Depreciation of property, M MERREZITE
plant and equipment 5(c) 18,425 19,332
Depreciation of investment properties  REWE 2T E 5(c) 4,731 4,739
Foreign exchange gains GNEE 5 3 7 B F (1,670) (544)
Changes in working capital: EIEE AR B
Increase in inventories FEZ2Em (5,682) (8,818)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and EUE 5 K HE A ARIE 2
other receivables wL (EA0) 8,524 (547)
Decrease in amounts due from FEMGERR A R & [F 28
holding companies and fellow NRIRIBZ B
subsidiaries 2,766 4,492
Decrease in amounts due from FEUSEAE A R ARIE 2 R
related companies 232 2,169
Increase in amounts due to holding J?Eﬁ% NGNS AEESL N
companies and fellow subsidiaries I8, 71890 8 1,532
Increase in amounts due to FEHEQ;@A ABRIE Z 1N
related companies 4,343 1,595
(Decrease)/increase in trade and F’éﬁféf% H\ﬁﬂ H2
other payables ) 1 (274) 5,786
Increase in retirement benefit liabilities ﬁ(ﬁaﬂﬁfEZi)JD 1,964 2,501
Cash generated from operations REXBZIMESTA 46,081 37,397
[ ]
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17 cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 177 Be&RERBASFEARBITER

(Continued) (8&)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) HEBEIHELZEEATGER
activities:
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing REBRERBMEEZEMEELEZ EHHNE
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising HIRe MRS EE B35 T &K - Etapﬂ
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or BEHEENGEL  BAZEBBERGR
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow RSN NAEENGEEHEESRERT
statement as cash flows from financing activities. SHEEAMEBRBZEER
Loan from Lease
related companies liabilities Total
BEATEMR HEasE e
$'000 $'000 $'000
FT Tt Tt
At1January 2019 . R=B-NF-A-B . MS637 2089 117,676 .
Changes from financing BERSHRZEH
cash flows:
Repayment of loans from BRTHERRER
related companies (12,779) — (12,779)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B/ EHE A5 — (1,085) (1,085)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 24 & &F2 215 — (37) (37)
Other borrowing costs paid HithBHEER AN (4,303) — (4,303)
Total changes from financing BhVEIR SRR E)
cash flows (17,082) (1,122 (18,204)
Exchange adjustments b AR (628) (22) (650)
Other change: Hith# g
Interestexpenses ... MEXM 4308 3 4,340
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-hAE+=-A=+—H
__and 1January 2020 k=%2=2%-A-B . 102230 . 82 103162
Changes from financing MERSRZEE
cash flows:
Proceeds from new loans from BEQRFIEERTA
related companies 3,854 — 3,854
Repayment of loans from BERTHEEQARER
related companies (12,719) — (12,719)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B {SFHEHE AR H — (943) (943)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 24 &858 2515 — (15) (15)
Other borrowing costs paid HifE B A (2,238) — (2,238)
Total changes from financing BER MBS
Ccashflows . 11,103 . (9s58) (12,061)
Exchange adjustments RS (476) — (476)
Other changes: HAth# 5
Increase in lease liabilities from RNEERZRETHEL
entering into new lease during i ANAoFE S B &
the period: — 57 57
Interestexpenses ... Mesd 2,238 ... 5 2,253
At 31 December 2020 N-—E_FBEF+_A=+—H 92,889 46 92,935
[ ]
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17 cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits 17 BeRERBASHEARBITER
(Continued) (&)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERSRLLE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the REEFARESRERZEEREUTE
following: 15 :
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
T T
Within operating cash flows BEELEEEREM 801 830
within financing cash flows BEEREEEIREN 958 1,122
1,759 1,952
18 Trade and other payables 18 MEFEIRHEMIRERA
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
$'000 $'000
Ft T+
Trade payables e E 50RIE 37,823 44,245
Other creditors and accrued charges HAb e ARIA 45,204 39,056
83,027 83,301
The amounts of other creditors and accrued charges expected to be AR ZR— RN EMEMNRIER
settled after more than one vyear are $3,835,000 (2019: $4,477,000). All of ?ETEE%@E'J?%B,SBS,OOOE (ZZE—h%F:
the other trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one 4,472,00075) cFTBEEMENES REMER
year. BIEFHE—F AT ©
The ageing of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as ENESRENGEER CRENT :
follows:
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NEF
$'000 $'000
T T
Current and less than 1 month past due REIEARBEIE DR —1E A 36,966 39,894
1to 3 months past due BHEA—==EA 676 3,904
More than 3 months but less than BEIRZR=EAEDREAR
6 months past due 139 312
More than 6 months past due BENR Z 7N E A 42 135
37,823 44,245
The Group's general payment terms are one to two months from the REERN—REREFRERERZBHE—=
invoice date. Therefore, the current and less than one month past due MIE A REIHER o Fitt - B R BB KRB EIR
balances above are mostly within two to three months from the invoice DPR—EANEBRRBOEEEEREME
date. =fERR -
[
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19 Loans from related companies 19 MRELTFER
(@) The analysis of the carrying amount of loans from (@) FEQLATERNIRMED ML
related companies is as follows: T
2020 2019
—E-EE —E—NF
$'000 $'000
¥t T
Loan from an intermediate holding company MR A R 2 B
(note 19(b)(i)) (BZE 19(b)()) 89,035 102,230
Loan from a related company (note 19(b)(ii)) BE AT E R (FTEE 19(0)i) 3,854 —
92,889 102,230
(b)  Significant terms and repayment schedule of loans (b) BAEARERZHERRERD
from related companies
(i) Loan from an intermediate holding company (i) FNERATIZER
At 31 December 2020, the loan from an intermediate holding company RZEZZF+_A=+—8 #ERA
was repayable as follows: Al ERFER T HRER
2020 2019
TECEF —T—-hF
$'000 $'000
¥t T
within 1 year or on demand —FANIEREZREFER 50,877 51,115
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFTRN 38,158 51,115
89,035 102,230
Loan from an intermediate holding company is unsecured, repayable in PR A R 2 ERBEER - W95 1
seven equal instalments until September 2022 and bears interest at one 1%%3?:?::¢ﬂﬂ CEENFER R —
year London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 1.5% which ranged FHBBERTTRIZEST E001.5% - #0E/51.83%
from 1.83% t0 3.46% during the year (2019: 3.46% t0 4.60%). E3.46% (ZZ—NFANAE3.46% = 4.60%) °
(ii)  Loan from a related company (i) BEQARER
During 2020, the Group received a loan from a related company of ZEoTEF ARER-RAENFARET
$3,854,000. The loan from a related company bears interest at 4.35%, is 3,854,000 L Y B 3K © Fﬂ}é&ﬁ? B E R B
unsecured and is repayable on 25 November 2021. B435% B ER_T=_—F+—A
—+HAEE-
——
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20 Employee retirement benefits 20 EEREHRIEF
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (@) EEEFEKE

The Group makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan
registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordnance (Chapter
426 of the Laws of the Hong Kong), which covers 11% (2019: 11%) of the
Group's employees. The plan is administered by an independent trustee,
with the assets held separately from those of the Group. The members’
benefits are determined based on the employees’ final remuneration and
length of service.

Under the scheme, a retired employee is entitled to a benefit based on
their completed years of service and salary on the date of leaving service.

Contributions to the plan are made in accordance with the
recommendations of an independent actuary who values the retirement
plan at regular intervals. The latest independent actuarial valuations of
the plans were at 31 December 2020 and were prepared by qualified
staff of Mercers (Hong Kong) Limited, who are the member of Chartered
Enterprise Risk Actuary, using the projected unit credit method. The
actuarial valuations indicate that the Group’s obligations under these
defined benefit retirement plan is 98% (2019: 90%) covered by the plan
assets held by the trustees.

The plans expose the Group to actuarial risk, such as interest rate risk,
investment risk and salary risk.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

AEBEREN%(ZT—NF : 11%) 2ER
REEREMENKEE - LA EITIA—28
MEFRAER  WERRNEEZEEDRIBL
BRI o 5Bl ZHRIIBIE —RIBIUAEEE 2
FREER] - ZIFEAE B RRIRET EIE AT
LE ;ﬁk%%ﬂﬂﬁf@EZ%&%@&HW}%E
HIEtH -

RIBEZETE - RIMEE B RERBRIRIEE
TARHIRIEFEMFHERISEN

RIRGT 8 2 R TYIRBRIB S E AN 2 32
RIS o At BRI 2B RBEMEDIN _-F
“EEF-A=t+—HmEtl (F8) BRA
A (FRFEERROMIEE) 2 BESER
BEMRABEEMEEAETT - BRAMGE
BN ASBIRBZSERMERIRET BIFARE
T2 ETEF % (ZT—NF : 90%) Z{5
FEAREZABEERE

Zat B S ARBARBEER - A XK=
& RERRNFEELR

RIBSIOR R IER 2 T

2020 2019

—EC-EF —E-hEF

$'000 $'000

Ft Tt

Present value of funded obligations BYEENEE 113,455 105,428
Fair value of plan assets HEEEZARE (111,077) (94,687)
Retirement benefit liabilities RENBE 2,378 10,741

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from the
amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement benefit
payable to plan members and future contributions to plan assets will also
depend on staff revenue and future changes in actuarial assumptions. The
Group expects to pay $2,772,000 in contributions to the defined benefit
retirement plan in 2021.

EFOAEERAENEE —FERXN - R
- R F S5 BIK B 2 B R
AHEIBEZARPRARTBERKR ZAE
2F) > A TNEESZERBERK+ @
AZBNFREDRREE - AEEBFE_F
Z—F XN 2,772,000 T4 [ E AR MR RE
2 WA -

—_—
—_
—
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 EREHERERN B
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (@) TEEEFERMKETE (&)
(ii) Plan assets consist of the following: (ii) FTEIEERIE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-nF
$'000 $'000
T T
Equity securities A& 53,317 43,556
Bonds &% 54,428 44,976
Cash B& 3,332 6,155
111,077 94,687

REERE  SEACHETEERRFBITER
% UM ERRREZER - EHAE
BZA—RIITEZSWREZFFEER
55% I HES o (ZB—N4E : 45% IR B E
408 N 55% B ES)

An asset-liability matching study was performed by the trustees
periodically to analyse the outcome of the strategic investment policies.
The investment portfolio targets a mix of 45% in equity securities across
a range of industries and 55% in government bonds (2019: 45% in equity
securities across a range of industries and 55% in government bonds).

(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations: (iii) FHERABENREZD

112

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—NnF
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January Bn—A—H 105,428 104,252
Remeasurements: HE
— Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from — ANOREEHELD
changes in demographic assumptions BE (BF) EE (4) 6
— Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from — UBEBREHELR
changes in financial assumptions BEEE S (BF) 4,374 (870)
— Actuarial gains arising from — KREBREFEELERN
changes in experience TBEAF (2,492) (255)
1,878 (1,119)
Benefits paid by the plan EIX 2B — (4,306)
Current service cost IR ARG A AR 4,315 4,685
Interest cost FI B A 1,834 1,916
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=1+—H 113,455 105,428

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations is 5.1

years (2019: 5.5 years).

ERENABEZIMEFSFRRNEF (ZF
— N 55%F) ¢
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 EREHEEF B
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (@) TEEEFERMKETE (B

(iv) Movements in plan assets:

(iv)

AHEIBECES

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
T T+
At 1 January R—A—H 94,687 86,555
Contributions paid to the plan by the employer 1B £ 2T RFT SR 2,717 2,762
Benefits paid by the plan FTEIZ AT 2 128 A — (4,306)
Interest income B A 1,664 1,607
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income sEIBEEZER (TEEREWA) 12,205 8,338
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets STEIBEZITHEX (196) (269)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 111,077 94,687
(v) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive (V) WiraeEkERERZAZOT
income are as follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
$'000 $'000
T T+
Current service cost I8 B AR AG A 2N 4,315 4,685
Net interest on net defined benefit liability FEBEAEA G BIREE 170 309
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets HEEEZITHEX 196 269
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss RIESPERZAX 4,681 5,263
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE S (BH) 1,878 (1,119)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income TEIEEZBH (eEMEWA) (12,205) (8,338)
Total amounts recognised in other REMEEmNERRIER
comprehensive income (note 9) A (MEE9) (10,327) (9,457)
Total defined benefit income EREfE AU A 42 5E (5,646) (4,194)
The current service cost, net interest on net defined & B4R b R 755K 72N 12 7E 5848 7]
benefit liability and administrative expenses paid FREZMEFETLIN
from plan assets are recognised in the following ToEREz=RA
line items in the consolidated income statement: ZIEB R
— Cost of sales — SHEKAK 732 798
— Selling and distribution expenses — HERDHEEY 2,260 2,614
— Administrative expenses — 1TBFAX 1,689 1,851
4,681 5,263
Significant actuarial assumptions and a sensitivity analysis are as follows: (vi) FENRBERIMNBRESTOT :
2020 2019
—E-BF —E-NEF
Discount rate (p.a.) BhIRE (F4) 1.80% 1.80%

Future salary increases (p.a.)

AR 2B EX (FF)

4.00%-4.50% 4.00%-4.50%
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20 Employee retirement benefits (Continued) 20 EREHERERN B
(@) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEHEEBBFEKFTE ()
(viy  (Continued) (vi) (8&)
The analysis set out below shows how the defined benefit obligation as at THDHTEHAE EREH RR0.25% 2 F L&
31 December 2020 would have increased/(decreased) as a result of a 0.25% FREMNEBENR _ZE-_TF+_-_A=+—8H
change in the significant actuarial assumptions: &g, CRd) aF
2020 2019
k=l 323 ZE-NF
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25% of 0.25%
#1500.25% "2 0.25% #900.25% B 0.25%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Ft
Discount rate ARIR = (1,465) 1,450 (1,407) 1,443
Salary increase rate T R = 1,677 (1,643) 1,663 (1,629)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes FlBRESTERIBERI2ECET
in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take R AESRE ST~ ZEERBERR
into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions. fEIBUABRE M
(b) Defined contribution retirement plan (b) TEBEMFCERAGTE
0} Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong who are not members of the (i) REBEEBCRBIMEAERETERE)  N&
above defined benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group's 71 & 75 2 A o S0 A A0 A _E it T B AR FIER AR
mandatory provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident TEMES - AMAREENRGIEAES
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined &l o RBIERESEE T —EBRBLEE
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate STRAAB B EREITERKRE - RIZEEH
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required to FE AEEREEESS ARG EIEDH#
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, HoBEAEEEBBARNS%  HEEABEH
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to A B &= 7/KF A30,000 7T 51 S 7B H A9
the plan vest immediately. AN ERE o
(i) Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of pension (i) FEFEBATEE APREBNEENTRE
schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group is required KREFTENKE - KEBAEHFIRKESH
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of the employees’ SMRIEAEREEINREES - BUEER
remuneration, to these pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only e BEMOHLETE - AEEBEBFRRRAKE
obligation for the Group with respect to these pension schemes is the FTEIM M —R 5 AIRER R IKS T EIZAE
required contribution under the central pension scheme. Contributions to R A B - HETBIELORKEGEHES -
these schemes vest immediately.
21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 MBRRERFAIIZFHFREA
financial position
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) FEMBEMRRRPESBEES:
financial position represents:
2020 2019
ki 323 —T-hF
$'000 $'000
FT T+
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year INEEEBRN ST — 601
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to prior years 2 854 & K FI1S R 5 — 293
— 894
——
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(BRABIETIN - BIRAEEEHE)

21

(b)

(c)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 BBRRRFRFIZERFRIE (&)
financial position (Continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b)y CRAZELHEEERERS:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the R MBARARERRZBEERIBEE R
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during BEZHEKED RFERNZEBIAT ¢
the year are as follows:
Depreciation  Impairment
allowances losses for
inexcess of  receivables  Retirement
the related benefit
depreciation  inventories liabilities Tax losses Total
TERHE FEkERIE
BRARENE kEE BIREF
Z8E  ZREFE 28fE HIEERE wE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Deferred tax arising from: RERERY :
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE—-NF—F—H 41,507 (87) (2,925) (34,129) 4,366
(Credited)/charged to profit or ity
loss (note 6(a)) (RFA) /#k (FizE6(a)) (625) (57) (4,931) (5,571)
Charged to equity (note 9) RERPEA (FEE9) = 1,205 = 1,205
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+=RA=1+—R
1 January 2020 k=—Z2-Z2%—A—H 40,882 (45) (1,777) (39,060) —
(Credited)/charged to profit or by
loss (note 6(a)) (FIA) /#08k (KizE6()) (929) (80) 96 (371) (1,284)
Charged to equity (note 9) R A (H79) - 1,284 - 1,284
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZF+-A=+—H 39,953 (125) (397) (39,431) —
Deferred tax assets not recognised: () FRERZEEHEEE:

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC and the Company:

AEBERNFEAKE AR RARBL AT
FIEIRE TSI BUZ RIET IR B A i FERR

2020 2019

—E-EF ZE-NF

$'000 $'000

Tt Tt

Tax losses HIBEE 207,173 290,257
Deductible temporary differences AT ER 113,826 132,373
320,999 422,630

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(p), deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it is
not probable that the relevant entities will generate future taxable profits
against which the above items can be utilised.

IRIEDIR M EE 1(0) & ETER - R R BERE
TERRAM B A B R RAE RS R AR R
MPAMEINE A &8 - A B RFER LFIE
BATSIBZBERIBEE ©
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21 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 21 HMERRRFRINZHRBRIE (&)
financial position (Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (Continued) (c) KRERAZELEHREBEEE:@ (B
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the PRC subsidiaries can be BERETBENBARIRAEZNBHEEIEREL
carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss originated HEEREER - BEZEBEHIT -
and will expire in the following years:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
$'000 $'000
T R
2020 —E T4 — 50,205
2021 —E-—4F 36,365 37,850
2022 g — 2,761
2023 B 24,998 24,575
2024 —T_pE 5,592 16,715
66,955 132,106
The unrecognised tax losses relating to the Company were $140,218,000 AN AR WERR ) B 1B 5 18 75 140,218,000 7T
(2019: $158,151,000) and do not expire under current tax legislation. (ZZ— A4 : 158,151,0007T) * WRIRITH
BT AR -
22 Lease liabilities 22 HEARK
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the TRINTASEBERARE AR BEEETH
Group's lease liabilities at the end of the current and previous reporting KO EEEZFBANIEE
periods:
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments

REHE REHEE RIERE RIEEE
NRE2BRE NREE NFEZRE (NE7Gt

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Tt Tt Tt
Within 1 year —FR 11 13 932 945
After 1 year but within 2 years ~ —&F{&ERER 12 13 — —
After 2 years but within 5years — Ri€E{&1B AER 23 25 — —
35 38 — —
Less: total future interest IR 15 3 48 Kl 2. 57 H
expenses (5) (13)
Present value of lease liabilites FE&EZBE 46 932
[
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23 Capital and reserves 23 KEFREHRH

(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HERIsBH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of KEEZIFAEZPTEEDFEY RFERH
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the EREG AR EEFHRAYE - KRR ZEE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the BRI FIRFRENFBERIATS
Company'’s individual components of equity between the beginning and & -

the end of the year are set out below:

Share Retained
capital profits Total
[N Wk E Fk
Note $'000 $'000 $'000
BiEE T T T
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZB-—hFE—A—B#&s 252,524 193,505 446,029
Changes in equity for 2019: “E-NEREREE:
Adjustment due to amalgamation  EZB{E A T4 G TR — (9,056) (9,056)
Actuarial gains and losses of TERBAE AR IRETE]
defined benefit retirement plan, 2 & &F & EE
net of tax G — 8,252 8,252
Loss for the year FEFE — (3,741) (3,747)
Balance at 31 December 2019
and 1 January 2020 27 252,524 188,960 441,484
Changes in equity for 2020: CE_SEERET
Actuarial gains and losses of TERBAE AR IRETE]
defined benefit retirement plan, 2 & &F & EE
net of tax G — 9,043 9,043
Profit for the year FEEREF — 13,803 13,803
Balance at 31 December 2020 R=-ZE—_ZF+=-A=+—H
ek 27 252,524 211,806 464,330
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23 cCapital and reserves (Continued) 23 BERfHW (@
(b) Share capital (b) B
2020 2019
TECEF ZE-hF
No. of No. of
shares shares
R BB Egnt 4=
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
T Tt
Ordinary shares, issued TR - 28T
and fully paid: R R
At 1 January and Rn—A—AH
31 December E+=—A=+—H 373,570 252,524 373,570 252,524
In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, RIBES CARIED) % 1351& » RFIRMD T
the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value. BEZEMmEE-
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as LERFFE ABRRKETREIRMRE - I
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at AIEARRAIAE LEFHA —BRHE—FR -
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to HRADRWMFREE  MEEBRRGZER
the Company’s residual assets. EEZ
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) HEHERAZ
(i) Capital reserve (i) EXRE
The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation BEREEE AT ENB AR ZRE AT
of retained profits of PRC subsidiaries. BERMemMEEZ #E -
(ii)  Exchange fluctuation reserve (i) EXRSREE
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange R NBREEREEREREUN B L
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of B E S ZTAER 8 R ARE &
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences MWIEE (F R 88 I S it Pl BB A B2 %
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part of &) ZIENZEE o R EARIRINGE 1(5) FT#
the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt SETBRMERE o
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s).
——
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23 capital and reserves (Continued) 23 BERGHW (@
(d) capital management (d =ExEHE

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 December 2020, the Group has total borrowings amounting to
$92,889,000 (2019: $102,230,000). The gearing ratio, representing the ratio
of total borrowings to the share capital and reserves of the Group was
17.1% (2019: 19.8%). The Group had bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents as at 31 December 2020 amounting to $156,109,000 (2019:
$129,393,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.

AEBEREANTIZAREEREEEEE
MIFERE  AMEERRREROERR R
HAbF5 IR & ARG BR - ARRKFIERE A
EmEE - NRERESEIEMNRERAE -

R-IZE-EF+-_A=+—H AEEHH
fEE 4% 592,889,000 T (ZZ — N :
102,230,0007T) - EEBEL X (BIEEA
A EBMB AR RO E) 517.1% (=
T—NF :198%) c HE— 7_?¢+:H
_+ A AEBEWNRTERNRE SR
I8 4 18 B 418 156,109,000 7T (_EE S

129,393,000 7T.) ©

AEEEE R ERHEARBRARS RE
B AR SBIRE RGN T AR 2 &
= (B BT B RS ) E AR B R
RIZ 2 ARG 718 I BB R FE R &1L
HERIBIEL AR -

EN/NCTPE ) NI RN I ok N
PRI E SR o
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SREBREERERAAMRE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the AEEE—MREBBEFFEEE  RFPE
normal course of the Group's business. The Group’s exposure to these /f FIEE g RIMNER R - REE@EZE
risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the SIZE N AREE A IR SRR 2 Bt
Group to manage these risks are described below. f%ﬁi%ﬂz%&'ltﬁﬁu CEERIAT o

(@) Credit risk (@ FEERRE
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its EERBRIERZIHFENEANETERAR
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The EEYEBENRR - NEBOEERKE
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables. The EXRAREINE ZIER zyxﬁllfﬁ/f&vﬂ
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents and ReBBERBOTERMEEANEERRSE
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are banks for which R AAERXSEHFAAEERAEERRE
the Group considers to have low credit risk. ERIERTT ©
The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the AEEWVERNELEMERMESEERRE -
Group to credit risk.
Trade receivables EWE S &
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual AEENEERBEEZEREFPNERE
characteristics of each customer rather than the industry or country in BEE  ZREEPHEEEMITER
which the customers operate and therefore significant concentrations FE Al EREERBENEFEEKR
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure to ABE - BeSEERRTEAEF - RS
individual customers. At the end of the reporting period, 20% (2019: 14%) HiK FEWE S REM Eﬁlﬁz@ BAH)20% (—
and 44% (2019: 39%) of the total trade and other receivables was due from T—NF  14%) Rk 44% (ZF—NF : 39%)
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers respectively. DRIKEAREBZARERAARS o
The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an amount AEENKGIEREEBEENSETER
equal to lifetime ECLs, taken into account historical data, current BESBRNBEEG  ZBHEUNBEERT
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions over the o R AEBMNBENEEBEERIT R
expected lives of the receivables. Further quantitative disclosure in respect FATREBEFPHNEBEEERATIEEESE
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is set At ER @R EN BRI SE— SR
out in note 15. PAREENTRAEPE - AEENEKE S

FREEANEERR  HE—PHTERE
EERMIFE5 -
[
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24

(a)

Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) (@ FERE (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWESER (5&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade receivables FRREIWE SIRMEBREEBIT
during the year is as follows:
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Balance 1 January m—HA—H 271 531
Exchange adjustments R 1 (1
Uncollectible amounts written off during the year AR 44N A] g Bl & 58 (599) (255)
Net provision for/(reversal of) impairment of B 5 & H AU R 5OF R E
trade and other receivables Bt (BE) 1,090 )
Balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 763 271

Amounts due from holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries and related companies (trade-related)

Credit risk in respect of amounts due from holding companies, fellow
subsidiaries and related companies (trade-related) is limited as they had
sufficient reserves of resources to settle the amounts as they fall due
and there was no history of default. Accordingly, no loss allowance was

recognised at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

ZRAT  BRMNBERARANEEAR
(RESHER) HEKRIEA

ERAT - AEMBATMEEAR (BE
SEH) HEKGRENEHRRKREERL -
AT 1A RS E TR 8 2R e B BR A K
H - WHSEELAWES - Bt R=ZT =
EFE+-_A=Z+—HBRER=ZFE—NF+=A
=+ — BAREREIIEREE -
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24 Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own
cash management. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions and related
parties to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the end
of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

24

(b)

ERERERERARKRE 5

RBE TR

FEREEEBAAREAGNRSETERIZ
RAKERREHERARBESHE - U
EREGFTOZREFHE R T EVHHE
AR RMECRE R RHEESRE
HZRBESHFL

TEREEEREE AT BEBELHBELD
HREFF AT - WAFTTORBBRRSRE
(ANBEIRRT B R E Z MBS - e
FRERN MEERERZBXRAEZNER
) RAEEARIER <& FERHHME
TR -

2020
—g-%f

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARLRBEBNESRE

More than More than

Within 1yearbut 2 years but
1year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FRH
REXE —£% mER
E): BRER BEFER ot RES
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T Tr Tr T
Trade and other payables ENESREMEER 83,027 - — 83,027 83,027
Loan from an intermediate RAER AR ZER
holding company 52,103 38,511 — 90,614 89,035
Loan from a related company BEARER 4,022 — — 4,022 3,854
Amounts due to holding companies FERHRAR A ) R B £
and fellow subsidiaries [fEENGIE 9,418 - — 9,418 9,418
Amounts due to related companies ENRERRIRIE 12,975 - — 12,975 12,975
Lease liabilities HEAR 13 13 25 51 46
161,558 38,524 25 200,107 198,355
2019
—ET-NE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SR ERBBRESRE
More than
Within 1 year but
1year or less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
—FR
RE K —F&
g) EMFA ok FREzE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T T T
Trade and other payables FE(TE 5 REAIRE 83301 - 83,301 83,301
Loan from an intermediate RN AR Z BN
holding company 53,884 52,235 106,119 102,230
Amounts due to holding companies  FEHERL A &) J[r &
and fellow subsidiaries B ARIRE 9,410 — 9.410 9,410
Amounts due to related companies  fEf & A RIBEIE 8,632 — 8,632 8,632
Lease liabilities HERRE 945 = 945 932
156,172 52,235 208,407 204,505
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24

(c)

)

(i)

Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The Group monitors the level of its variable rate
borrowings. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management
is set out in (i) below.

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s

24 SMERERRARKRE G

(c) ARk
AREZFIFRBER R EREL - &

EEEEFBMNENEFOKT - AEEH
B IEJ"WT HOR AR T3 ()

i FRER

TRAXREENZEEAZFMERARZE

borrowings at the end of the reporting period: R R EERS
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
BRAIE &8 elSIES A
% $'000 % $'000
% T % Tt
Fixed rate borrowings: ELER :
— Loan from a related company REARIEREEEE 4.35 3,854 — —
— Lease liabilities HESRE 3.81 46 2.22 932
3,900 932
Variable rate borrowings: FENFIEE R
— Loan from an intermediate — BN A A
holding company ZER 1.76 89,035 3.34 102,230
Total borrowings B4 92,935 103,162
Fixed rate borrowings as EEERhEREE
a percentage of total borrowings E{ﬁtl: 4.2% 1.0%
Sensitivity analysis (i) BRUEDN
At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of RZZEZFFF+-A=+—H " EstFEL

100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after taxation and the
Group's retained profits by approximately $890,000 (2019: $1,022,000). The
tax effect was assumed to be nil as the entity which has drawn down the
loan had unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes and it is not
probable that it will generate future taxable profits against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the
Group's profit after taxation and retained profits in respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period. The impact on the Group's
profit after taxation and retained profits is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense of such a change in interest rates.

H/TE;& BT EEMAEBHRERE

BRBERT  NEBAREERBEET R
2 Mﬁl #E A 18 H149890,000 T (=&
— L4+ 1,022,0007T) ° FARA K BEREE R 2K
BESES R MIEER BT RIS EE
BERNAT A ERHRIEE BB ZBETH
15 - E R ERGTE o

WA EGURME D IT BUR AR B R BRI R Z A K
258N Z AR & - RN AEERER
BAS BN FBFETAR - S| BAEEHER
ReRMERERPIES - NEBRRBIZEN
K ZEtBNE B R AZE N RS F L
BERNFEZEEMGR -
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(d)

124

Financial risk management and fair values
(Continued)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales, purchases,
borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities which
give rise to receivables, payables, loans and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies
giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars and Euros.

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars, all
sales and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or
United States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe. Given
that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, management
do not expect that there will be any significant currency risk associated
with such United States dollar denominated transactions. For transactions
denominated in Euros, management monitor the level of exposure closely
and take actions such as an earlier settlement considering movements in
the exchange rate.

For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for
certain transactions amongst group entities that are denominated in either
Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars, most of other transactions are
denominated in Renminbi. For those transactions amongst group entities
denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong dollars, management
consider the transaction amounts are not significant and the exposure to
currency risk is low.

The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing such
risk were unchanged from 2019.

24 eMERERRARKRE G

(d)

SN LB

AEBETEREERS B35 SEZH
BB K B ELE SIS (It 5 E
WIHER 2 E%) REL 2 RIKEE
R EARR - BREBRET  AmEY
SMNERER o SIZINERR c BT BERHEE
TTREREE

HNEBEANETEEERN S AT
BRIl m A RNk B AR EITIREIN - FFE
HENMBEYABTRETERZER - H
MBI - MASEEMBERET B
TTEXTEBARES - ERNARENAT
HE2XRS  BERETYEREAESNER
IR 3 E RIFE R B EREVE 3 - AN A4S
IE o

HNEBAAARBEDREERNSEE
B BRTHEEARSRNETHETEE
i bR ZFRUAREIEEN - GRASEE
NAETHAETIEENNR S - ERERR
RBERTIEK - AEEHNEBINERR T
* o

AEBAZIMNERR LR EERERRE—T
—NEFAER
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) sMNERES (&)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) AZ 2 HNE R B
The following tables detail the Group’s significant exposure at the end of TERMAEBEEBWIEAEAEREDRE
the reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or EETENCHEREESBERES 2N
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of FERESVEL MDA - TRITBIEEER
the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of HE B ARERER (ZERERAE
the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot AT B A R FIRE M — 2B ) mELE
rates at the year end date. Differences resulting from the translation of the HER  TROSENIZGEERZEXRY
financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group's BEBEIERS| 2 A o FERFBAING
presentation currency and the exposure arising from the borrowings BRR M BmERAEENZIEEm
from group entities that in substance form part of the net investment in EEMEBEITEIELA o

subsidiaries are excluded.

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SMERRE (RBTEE)
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
United United
States States
dollars Euros dollars Euros
Ep BzE E [Z¢7
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT T T R
Trade and other receivables EWE 5 R EBETE — — _ 481
Cash and cash equivalents HERERIKRSIER 17,520 1 14,646 281
Trade and other payables JENE 5 R HAMBRIR — (771) — (1,000)
Amounts due to holding FERHERR A T R
companies and fellow GES I ENGESE
subsidiaries (7,596) — (8,268) —
Net exposure R\ B A E F =R 9,924 (770) 6,378 (238)
[ ]
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 eRmEBREERAAMKEEE
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) IMNEREE (&)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BB
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's TRETAEENEEARAES KRR ZI
profit after taxation and retained profits that would have arisen if foreign MERNE HEUAEEB BRRERTRE
exchange rates to which the group entities had significant exposure at the BHEMZEEE B REEME RS
end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other N o gk S BREFBITEETLZE
risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the BMBERAH I TETLHMEK BB
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar BEFFE - WH - ARREERETERKESN
would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value EERHERHFRAENNIENGEER S8
of the United States dollar against other currencies. Also, the tax effect BAREAMGEIEMS 2 ELERE - FitE
was assumed to be nil for the entities which had unrecognised tax losses BRI EBGTE -
for deferred tax purposes since it is not probable that they will generate
future taxable profits against which tax losses could be utilised.
2020 2019
—E-ERF ZE-NF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/ Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ Increase/
in foreign (decrease) in  (decrease) in foreign  (decrease) in (decrease)
exchange profit after inretained exchange profit after  inretained
rates taxation profits rates taxation profits
HNEER RIERF R BT HNEER  RRTERF ZEAF
t#/ #m,/ #m,/ i 4 #Em/ 1&m,/
(T&) (R2) (R2) (T (BD) CRd)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
United States dollars =TT 10% 992 992 10% 638 638
(10)% (992) (992) (10)% (638) (638)
Euros E¢7 10% (77) (77) 10% (24) (24)
(10)% 77 77 (100% 24 24
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an LRI O MEREASESEEREMN
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’ BRI B2 (REWMEH  BREE
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, translated AZEXREB|BAETT) 2 ANFEER A
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the EXiZ
reporting period for presentation purposes.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates BREMEDTEREINEER 2 FFEHNRE
had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the FEEASEMBEINEE AT ASEER
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the RINERM ST E  BIEEBEENIIE
reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables within G E T 2 e B IEE AL B UL L FE AT
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional RIE - WEFBRKREEEBHEET —FEH
currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences HEHRMEERF SN SIENE - O
that would result from the translation of the financial statements of BIEBEBAINMB AR 2 W ERmRIBEK
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency REEZ 25| EBFAEEZZRE  ZBHM
and the borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of the BE T —NFAERZ ELEHETT o
net investment in subsidiaries. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis as for 2019.
[
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE ®
(Continued)
(e) Fair values (e) RAREHE
Except for the loan from an intermediate holding company (note 19) EIZIC AR REMB AR REEARAIE
and loan from related companies (note 19), other non-trade balances B EEEGRY AEER LS B BiRESkIK
with holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and related companies are Bl sER - PNERABER (19 )
unsecured, interest-free and recoverable/repayable on demand. Given BRON o ENZZ G WREAANBZES
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their fair values. K e
All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts FEHEMWEREREENABENKREEE
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2020 and HMEER - ZE_ZEFLR _ET—-NF+_A
2019. ST AR BEITREAESR -
()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) =cHEERTHEEEE
Provision for discounts, rebates and promotional incentives are either W BAEREEEETIE—Re:t AER
included in trade and other payables or offset against trade receivables B REMIEIE - BEAEEAHES ERF| K
when the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised HEERTE TR FREELER <
amounts and intends to settle on a net basis. HEIE S RIBR R G B kR R A E RK
The Group holds cash deposits as collateral over certain trade receivables, rEERBEReZ2ERE TRIKE S8R
which are included in trade payables and not offset against trade MG ZERSEAENE SEEES
receivables as the Group does not have a legally enforceable right to set Wi EW S FEE G MAKE - REARE
off the recognised amounts. EN S AR IR S O RS S
The following tables set out the carrying amounts of recognised financial TREZ LRSIV ERRASRTA
instruments that are subject to the above arrangements. Z BREE o
2020
it Sl 23
Related
Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial  Net amounts not offset in
financial instruments presented the consolidated
instruments in offset in the inthe statement
the consolidated consolidated consolidated of financial
statement  statementof  statementof position — cash
of financial financial financial collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBERRR REBERAR REBRRAREE
BRISRIA EHEEER REBRAR EERE2E -
k2 -k 3 2FE  WBBLEAR B8
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
fix i I i I i
Financial assets SREE
Trade and other receivables ERE R E RS 15
—Trade receivables - EWEBSEA 58,515 (26,830) 31,685 (1,801) 29,884
— Financial assets not in the scope - S REETERH
of offsetting disclosures LREEE 11,090 - 11,090 - 11,090
Financial liabilities SHER
Trade and other payables ENE SR MRS 18
— Trade payables - ENESKRE 64,653 (26,830) 37,823 - 37,823
—Financial iabiliies notinthe scope.~ — S BAETFEH
of offsetting disclosures LEEE 45,204 - 45,204 (1,801) 43,403
[
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24 Financial risk management and fair values 24 SHEREERERAAMEE
(Continued)
()  Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities ) =sHEERTREMEEE @
(Continued)
2019
“E-NE
Related
(Gross amounts Related amounts
of recognised financial Net amounts not offset in
financial nstruments presented  the consolidated
instruments in offset in the inthe statement
the consolidated consolidated consolidated of financial
statement statement of statementof  position — cash
of financial financial financial Collateral
position position position received Net amount
REBRAR RUBHRAE RUBHRAERE
ERASBIE sl RIERRE BHAE B -
kx| TAZ%E LFE YIS HERR e
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000
ik I i A T I
Financial assets SHEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R AR 15
— Trade receivables - RREZHEE 63,697 (24,326) 39371 (169 37,680
— Financial assets not in the scope - SRAEMERS
of offsetting disclosures IREEE 12,028 — 12,028 — 12,028
Financial liabilities SHEE
Trade and other payables ENE SR MRS 18
— Trade payables - ERE5%E 68,571 (24,326) 44,245 - 44,215
— Financial liabilites not inthe scope. - 4 BBEFEHRH
of offsetting disclosures IRESE 39,951 — 39,951 (1,691) 38,260
The gross amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities and their net TRABBEEERTBERAKRT 222
amounts as presented in the consolidated statement of financial position BEFGHABGBEZEE  UWERFBERRE
that are disclosed in the above tables are measured in the consolidated B 2 I A ARSI BE o
statement of financial position at amortised cost.
The amounts in the above tables that are offset in the consolidated FERYIE R SRR E PG £ iR
statement of financial position are measured on the same basis. FEREEESBE o
25 Capital commitments 25 BEFKIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December N-B-_EE+_-_A=+—H0 ' &
2020 not provided for in the financial statements were BT P RE 2R NTEREIESEE
as follows: mE:
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Contracted for 2EI4) 7,272 3,428
Authorised but not contracted for ERLEBERETL 18,536 7,250
25,808 10,678
[
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(BRABIERIN  BERBEFHEH

26 Material related party transactions

(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material related
party transactions:

26 EXMEALES

BAMBRRAEREZR S REHIN K
SEERATEAFEALRS

Transactions with group companies EERTEREERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
B/ () EEL?E
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECER ZZ-NF - k-3 “E-NE
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
[k T T T T
Purchases from = (i)
— intermediate holding companies ~ — RNMZERAF 1,036 1,950 — (116)
— fellow subsidiaries - RAEKBAR 3,197 2,764 (732) (289)
— related companies — BERR 30,665 27,783 (7,084) (5,051)
Sales to &5 (i)
— an intermediate holding company ~ — H/MERA T 212,511 210,664 16,723 19,082
— fellow subsidiaries SGEA )N 237 97 — 70
Royalty payments to XNEMEER (i
— intermediate holding companies — RANERAE 948 1,041 (17) (14)
— arelated company — BERR 1,647 1,823 (5,891) (3,581)
Interest expense payable to FE X
— an intermediate holding company ~ — #MERA A (iii) 2,238 4,303 (142) (295)
Notes: BT
0} Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms 0} ERGIREFRBZIGTET - BEE

mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances are
set out in note 16.

Related companies are related to the Group as their ultimate holding
company has a significant influence over the Group.

(i) Royalties are payable to intermediate holding companies and a related
company for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to relevant licensing
agreements.

(iii) Interest expense was paid for the loan from an intermediate holding
company.

These transactions also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
except for the purchases from related companies, which the directors do
not consider to be connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

KEER Z IR I TE 16 MBIRR -

FE N B AR E G RERERRER R
AHAREEEATE

(ii) ENRERIERBAFTARMAE - BEM
EREESS FHNMERA R REERR
HEF o

(iii) MEXHTBEERRNEK
RELETRAUNEUAT  HERH (BERE
BRAZ R BRI BKEER SR FHER

BER 5 - AEARIGD - NABEFLHRE
BREERARRZTERREERS
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(BRABIETIN - BEBEFE)

26 Material related party transactions (Continued) 26 EBEABEALIRS (#)
(b) Other transactions with group companies (b) ESKERHMBEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
&8 EW () ER&ER
2020 2019 2020 2019
—ECEF ZE-NF —ECEF ZENF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fi FIT ¥ Tt
Expenses paid by the Group on HRASEEREEANR
behalf of group companies Oe-3-
— intermediate holding companies  — F 2R A A 3,076 (403) 95 434
— fellow subsidiaries — RAEMEAR 57 94 11 9
— a related company — BEAR 8,317 6,795 1,260 1,492
Expenses paid by group companies  HEEA RIRAEE
on the Group’s behalf KX EA
— intermediate holding companies  — F41 2R A 7 4,005 975 (8,523) (8,692)
— fellow subsidiaries — RRKBAR — = (4) (4)
() Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEEBEAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEFEXZEEBASZHE (@%Fﬁ%‘ﬂﬁﬁ?&
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and the ?§@$Q@%$§HZ?AI§&WE§8F}%&?§
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as follows: METEREFEE N HIE) AT
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
$'000 $'000
T T
Short-term employee benefits EHEEEF 18,267 18,734
Post-employment benefits BEBS 12 1@ F| 933 906
19,200 19,640
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)). BMESEFT A TEIEHM] A (RHFESD)) °
[

130



EEENEERARAT —B_BFFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf #& R 3= HizE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBERTIN - HIRBEHE)

27 company-level statement of financial position 27 #*2F — BHEKAE

2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NF
Note $'000 $'000
B aE T Tt
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment W - HER KRG 312,967 321,773
Investment properties B 116,882 121,613
429,849 443,386
Intangible assets | EE 4,771 4,771
Investments in subsidiaries RpEE NG 2 1,690 4,343
436,310 452,500
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 31,271 27,947
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K E A BRIE 35,115 44,720
Amounts due from holding companies FEUIZERR A B
and fellow subsidiaries EESIENGERE 9,941 16,052
Amount due from a related company e @A RIERIE 1,260 1,492
Bank deposits RITER 20,007 22,661
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkERBELIER 76,057 46,350
173,651 159,222
current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables JERTE 5 R EMERIE (46,502) (50,612)
Loan from an intermediate holding FRMZERR A R Z B
company (50,877) (51,115)
Amounts due to holding companies FERHZERR AR &
and fellow subsidiaries B ZM B A RRE (587) (763)
Amounts due to related companies e RAE A FIERIE (7,083) (4,998)
Lease liabilities HEARE (11) =
Current tax payable JEFRIR — (894)
(105,060) (108,382)
Net current assets hBNEEFE 68,591 50,840
[
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27 company-level statement of financial position 27 ZFoF - BEKIR @

2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
Note $'000 $'000
BaE F T T
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERAREBERS 504,_9_(_):! ___________ §(_J_3:§A_L(_)____
Non-current liabilities FkFRBEE
Loan from an intermediate holding FRMERR A R Z B
company (38,158) (51,115)
Retirement benefit liabilities BREFEE (2,378) (10,741)
Lease liabilities HEAE (35) —
(40,571) (61,856)
NET ASSETS EEFRE 464,330 441,484
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR #E 23(a)
Share capital A% 252,524 252,524
Other reserves Hib b 211,806 188,960
TOTAL EQUITY ot 464,330 441,484
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 1 March KABFER T —F=A—BHERK
2021. TS o

Ramon S. Ang BEX Ramon G. Torralba HEE
Director = Director ==
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28 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 28 EHERREREERAF
At 31 December 2020, the directors consider the immediate parent RZE-_TFE+-_A=1+—H BFRAK
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation SEMNEES AR RREKERAT DA
Limited and Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. respectively. Neptunia 37 5% F A R A 7 X Top Frontier Investment
Corporation Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while Top Frontier Holdings, Inc. ¢ 37 3 K 4 BR 22 &1 78 & A 5 i
Investment Holdings, Inc. is incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines. X7 Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc.
Top Frontier Investment Holdings, Inc. produces financial statements BIJ A JE 7 & £ 0 B 5t B 57  Top Frontier
available for public use. Investment Holdings, Inc. 48 BT 53k K ¥

A o
29 Possible impact of amendments, new standards 29 BHEGERRBE_Z_ZF+—

and interpretations issued but not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, and a new standard, HKFRS 17,
Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2020 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to
the Conceptual Framework

1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant
and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

1 January 2022

Amendments to HKAS 37,
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

R=+—HLFEEEHHERNE
B - R RRETRERNTEE

HEAUBHRETIZRB  FESMAEE
EREZEREE—E-_EF+-_A=+—H
IEFEDMREBNENSE] - FEA KB
12 MA KRR ERNZFIETT RFTE
Bl o Hep » PUTEAREEFR :

RT3 HHBR
ZE&RRZ
SR HEER
BRYHHRELER -
SE=5% (1BF]) —A—H
B RER 2 1A
BB e ERIE IR -
(1B7T) W% - #as R —A—H
R BUEFEAT
g2 s A
BAGREAE =157 ZE=F
(1E5]) BRMEAH — —HA—H
BITR K Z A
BRMBHRELE] ZE=F
T N\FECTTF —A—H
BE 2 FEUE

AEBEEFAEZEENST N AR EREZ
FE JEAR/L  AEERSERMZETE
AMETTHAKE NGRS VB RRBREAT
LHATEEME K o
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel Brewery
Hong Kong Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 66 to 133, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code") and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery operations

FENE  BERES — DEREEBHREN T

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 77-78

B2 E I RAN T 11 RE 77 E 78 A& E

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BRETEEEERPEERES L

In view of the loss (excluding government subsidies received
during the year) incurred by the Group's Hong Kong brewery
operations, management considered that indicators of
impairment of the Group’s property, plant and equipment used
in Hong Kong brewery operations existed at 31 December
2020.

ENERERBEBEEBREENER (T8 ARFE FE AR
FEeL) ERERAR_Z_THF+-_A=+—HEXEA
REBBEEBNYE  BBRRBEFERETXR -

Accordingly, management assessed whether there was any
impairment of the Group's property, plant and equipment used
in the Hong Kong brewery operations, at 31 December 2020,
which was assessed by preparing a value in use calculation
based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

Eit - EEEHER T EF+ A=+ —AEEEARNE
;"é@%@%%ﬁ’]%% R NREEETERE  WENRBMIR

ReEmyMHEREREE BRI EEITE -

The discounted cash flow analysis used to assess the risk of
potential impairment was based on a number of assumptions,
which included revenue forecasts and estimations of future
discounts, future variable costs and fixed costs as well as
future inflation in Hong Kong and long-term growth rates. The
determination of these assumptions requires management
to exercise significant judgement and is subject to inherent
uncertainty.
AReHEBTRERBNE AR RO DERZIARKRE -
BIEWATE R B ARRITHEET ~ AR AR R f B TE B A &2
BERRBRERIPERE - GUERENEEFZTEEEDN
BARABAZRREREN T HEAE -

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment used in Hong Kong brewery
operations included the following:

BT E - R REE — BAREERRE R NS
FHEFRENATIE
° engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us

in assessing the methodology applied by management
in its discounted cash flow analysis with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
EARMAONIEEMGHRMESERITEEER]
BHEBEEECHBRReROMKERN T AET
B

° critically challenging the key assumptions and
forecasts adopted by management in its preparation
of the discounted cash flow analysis by referring to
industry and other available third party information,
the recent financial performance of the Hong Kong
brewery operations and management’s budgets and
plans for the operations in 2021 and beyond;
DETEREMAIERMNE=FTER BFRBER
MHNBBRRAREBER T —F REBEKT
EHREKETEIE  FEAGEEBNRECUIRR
R ITR AR B2 R R FEA

o engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in assessing the discount rate used by management in
its discounted cash flow analysis by recalculating an
appropriate discount rate with reference to available
financial information of other listed brewing companies
in Asia Pacific and considering region and industry
specific risk premiums;
BARMONEEERN - BEBBEMEB2ETARER
i =7 0B A B AT ER A B 75 BRI 5 S [ BT 3R
HERBBERENTENEZHRE  NHERE
REBRIRIRE M I 8 A RLER T TR
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment — Hong Kong brewery operations

B2 E AT 11 RE 77 E 78 ARV &t E

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 77-78

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

plant and equipment used in Hong Kong brewery operations
as a key audit matter because of the significant judgement
and estimation required to be exercised by management in
forecasting future revenue, variable costs and fixed costs and
in determining an appropriate discount rate and also because
of the magnitude of the assets under consideration and the
possibility of management bias in the selection of the key
assumptions.
BPIETEE - HEERERE — BBEBAEKO LR E R
ERBARETEIE  LIARERBRARRWA - RKAE
B B AR 2R (B TE B A A K2 6 78 3 8 A 3R SR I ZB VR HH 88 K 1 %
st THRRGEREENREREBEERERREBRELEA
mEa -

BRETEE BREEBFBEEEXPTEEL
We identified assessing potential impairment of property, | comparing the actual performance and results of the

Hong Kong brewery operations for the current year
with the key assumptions and forecasts adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow analysis for
the prior year to assess the accuracy of management's
forecasting process and making enquiries of
management as to the reasons for any significant
variations identified and whether they have been
considered in the current year’s key assumptions and
forecasts; and

HERBBEBR AN BRFEENERRRREEEE
BERNBATFENCHRRERED TR RN A
R R FERAEITLH R - LAFH B 12 E TR A2 Fr 10 2E7E
ERFEHNNEMERE SN RE RN AR REE
WEARBEREBAEFREEER LMERREEE
TEHE# : &

. performing sensitivity analysis for the discount rate,
the sales growth rate and operating costs in the
discounted cash flow analysis and considering in
greater detail the information used to derive the most
sensitive assumptions and whether there were any
indicators of management bias in their selection.
HEWRReROMHARE  HEERERKLLEK
RETHREDN - WERIFHEERREMEAD
FHAEEN  NEEEMNEEREATARENTR
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BN % H MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT BN % H MRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Cheng Mei Yan Hilary.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

1 March 2021
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GROUP PROPERTIES E£E¥)%

Details of the major property of the Group are as follows:

Existing use

RERAR

Major property held for investment
BERENIEME

San Miguel Industrial Building Rental
Nos. 9-11 Shing Wan Road,
Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong

BBV MABRKER9-115% GiEh=1
ENTEKRE
|
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Term of lease
FHHS

Medium-term
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY EEEHBE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABEEEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—BCEF —E-NF —ZE-N\%F —E—+F TE-RF
$'000 $000 $" 000 $'000 $'000
Fr T T F T
(Note)
()
Results E4
Revenue A 555,658 580,050 584,609 565,785 541,427
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AT, (BE) 12,547 3,310 (70,860) 14,400 5,927
Income tax credit/(charge) FrERIET A/ () 1,304 4,990 (3,228) 819 778
Profit/(l0ss) for the year FERF/ (FE) 13,851 8,300 (74,088) 15,219 6,705
Attributable to: FEMGIAT :
— Equity shareholders — RRRIERFEAA
of the Company 17,228 11,583 (73,556) 12,480 8,654

— Non-controlling interests — JEPRAGAERS (3,377) (3,283) (532) 2,739 (1,949)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEEF,/ (FE) 13,851 8,300 (74,088) 15,219 6,705
Earnings/(loss) per share SR&EF, (BE)
— Basic (cents) — EAR () 5 3 (20) 3 2
Assets and liabilities BEEHERE
Property, plant and equipment and ¥ « #22 Rk

investment properties BEYE 465,291 474,377 487,708 576,388 584,806
Intangible assets EREE 4,771 4,771 4,771 4,781 5,139
Net current assets mENEEFE 113,520 98,622 94,495 128,905 154,362
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERREHEE 583,582 577,770 586,974 710,074 744,307
Loan from an intermediate holding S MERA R 2 B2k

company (38,158) (51,115) (64,243) (115,412) (165,410)
Retirement benefit liabilities BNERAE (2,378) (10,741) (17,697) (5,799) (17,844)
Lease liabilities HEAE (35) = — — —
Deferred tax liabilities REIEFRIAAE — — (4,366) (4,052) (2,969)
Net assets BERE 543,011 515,914 500,668 584,811 558,084
Capital and reserves BRARF#E
Share capital AR 7R 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524 252,524
Other reserves HAihfE 324,005 291,560 273,634 358,567 332,687
Total equity attributable to equity ~ AAFREZREEA

shareholders of the Company FEfEHE R 576,529 544,084 526,158 611,091 585,211
Non-controlling interests FEE R (33,518) (28,170) (25,490) (26,280) (27,127)
Total equity A 543,011 515,914 500,668 584,811 558,084
Note to the five year summary: RFREBERT

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, Leases, with effect from 1 January 2019, the Group
has changed its accounting policies in respect of the lessee accounting model. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of the standard, the changes in accounting policies were
adopted by way of opening balance adjustments to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as at 1 January 2019. After initial recognition of these assets and liabilities, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of
the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the previous policy
of recognising rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a straightline basis over
the lease term. Figures in years earlier than 2019 are stated in accordance with the policies
applicable in those years.
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